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REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 1-5, 11th Floor

Kodak House 2

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.moiselle.com.hk

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 484

HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

KEY DATES
Closure of Register of Members:
29 August 2013 to 2 September 2013

Annual General Meeting:
23 August 2013

Final Dividend Payment:
(subject to shareholders” approval at Annual General Meeting)
9 September 2013
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$419
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$20 million for the year ended 31 March
2013. Gross margin increased to 83.8 percent as compared to
81.2 percent in last year and reflected the high margin products
and high-end market segments the Group focused on. Operating
margin significantly decreased to 5.9 percent, compared to 10.9
percent in last year, under the impact of both the downturn of
the retail market of mainland China and the increased rental
expenses and human resources costs. The net margin, as a
result, decreased significantly even though excluding the effect

of the net gain on disposal of property last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The management had increased resources in the building up of
new customer base of both house brands and the European
brands when they penetrated into different cities of the greater
China market. The Group increased resources in developing
young brand GERMAIN in order to establish its own sales
network and niche customer base. The Group continued to
explore the fashion accessories market by maintaining retail
stores for accessories brands COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA in
Hong Kong and Macau markets during the year. The Group had
carried out jointly controlled entity with the SEQUOIA brand
owner to operate the retail store of the brand in Hong Kong.
Other than accessories market, the Group also continued to
increase brand image of the main apparel brand MOISELLE by
allocating increased resources in marketing and brand image

enhancement.
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Chairman’s Statement

During the fiscal year of 2013, the Group had opened new
stores in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Nanning, Xian, Kunming, Wenzhou, Xinjiang, Tianjin and
Wouhan, China. By continuing to restructure the sales network in
China, the Group aimed at stabilizing its sales network in the
mainland China market and utilizing the most effective and
efficient channels to serve its target customers. The sales
network in Taiwan was expanded whilst the Macau market was

further explored during the year.

To increase brand equity and explore new markets of both house
brands and European brands had been the primary business
strategy of the Group. The Group had continued to improve
efficiency of resources throughout the manufacturing and
operating processes. Increased resources had been allocated to
design and development as well as retail operations functions for

research and development and talent training respectively.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to formulate focused strategies to
increase its competitive edge and improve the market potential
of its products. Refreshed images and new styling for MOISELLE
brand products will be launched and target at both existing and
potential customers. The Group also continues to raise the
customer service standards so that customers can enjoy the

valuable shopping experience in the Group’s retail outlets.

Various marketing campaigns will be launched to continue to
maintain and improve brand images and increase exposure of
brand profiles of the Group’s brands to new and younger
potential customers. The management will explore more
prestigious locations throughout different markets where the
products of the Group’s brands are desirable by the favorable

customer groups.
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The Group will also take the growth in economy in the
mainland China as future focus in business development.
Despite the economic fluctuations in the short term, the long
term development of the China economy is considered
contributory to positive returns to the Group’s brand
investments. The Group is going to strengthen its sales network
in existing cities so as to achieve increased market penetration

in the country.

The Group will continue to enhance the brand equity under the
multiple brand strategy. In addition, the Group will keep on
refining the brand images of each brand under the Group. The
Group will also allocate resources in developing overseas

markets in order to gain more potential customers in future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
most importantly our prestigious customers for their continuous

support during the year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 15 MOISELLE, 7
mademoiselle and 1 imaroon (2012: 15 MOISELLE, 4 mademoiselle
and 2 imaroon) retail stores as at 31 March 2013. The Group
also maintained one retail store for the young brand, GERMAIN,
at Matheson Street, Causeway Bay during the year. The four
brands were separately managed with each having its own
distinctive target customers. The design teams for each brands
worked out their own collections and image stories from
different creative sources of fashion trends. The Group’s retail
operations, however, were managed to pursuit for objectives in

the most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2012: two) stores of MOISELLE were maintained during the
year in Macau. One mademoiselle and one COCCINELLE (2012:
one mademoiselle and one COCCINELLE) stores were maintained
during the year. With the increased tourists traveling to and
expatriates staying in Macau, the demand of prestigious fashion
apparel and accessories products was expected to grow and the
Group had continued to introduce more attractive and valuable

fashionable products into the market.

At 31 March 2013, the Group operated in Taiwan market 13
MOISELLE stores (2012: 14) and 5 mademoiselle stores (2012: 3)
in Taipei, Taoyuan, Hsinchu, Taichung, New Taipei and Tainan.
With the expanded sales network in Taiwan, the Group had
managed to continue to penetrate the Group’s brands into

various districts in Taiwan during the year.

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In the mainland China, the Group maintained its sales network
under three house brands, MOISELLE, mademoiselle and
GERMAIN, during the year. There were 45 MOISELLE stores
(2012: 57) operating in the mainland China as at 31 March
2013. 29 (2012: 38) out of the 45 (2012: 57) stores were
operated as consignment counters in the department stores and
14 (2012: 14) were retail shops. The remaining ones were
operated by the franchisees. The sales network of mademoiselle
was expanded in the mainland China region during the year.
There were 13 (2012: 9) mademoiselle stores operating as at 31
March 2013. New GERMAIN stores were opened in the
mainland China during the year, including one in Sanlitun,
Beijing and one in TaiKoo Hui, Guangzhou. The continued
adjustment in sales network aimed at capturing the most suitable
locations in the competitive market and diverse cities in China.
The multi-brand strategies had kept bringing competitive edge
and synergy effects on the brand building and increase potential
in the China fashion retail market.

The restructured network in the market of the mainland China
region was expected to provide future growth opportunities to
the Group and to increase the brand exposure in the major and
second-tiers cities. Under the implementation of integrated
marketing and visual merchandising strategies, activities in both
Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and strengthened
refreshed brand image and new look design concepts for
products of MOISELLE during the year.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group operated one (2012: one) retail
store of COCCINELLE, an ltalian fashion accessories brand, at
New Town Plaza, Shatin in Hong Kong. The retail store of
SEQUOIA, a French fashion accessories brand, was maintained
at the K11 shopping mall during the year as well as the one
newly opened at Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, and both were
operated by the jointly controlled entity of the Group.

By establishing retail stores in the shopping districts with high
pedestrian flows, in addition to strategically launched marketing
campaigns, the Group successfully maintained the brand mix
and increased the brand equity of the brands under the Group.
The strengthened customer base also contributed to the increase
in the brand awareness of both the house brands and the
European brands operated by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 8% to
approximately HK$418,895,000 (2012: HK$455,718,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2013 as compared with 2012. As the
restructure of sales network in the mainland China had faced
difficulties under high competition of prime retail locations in
major cities, overall performance of the region outside Hong
Kong had decreased during the year under review. The revenue
of the region outside Hong Kong decreased by approximately
8% to approximately HK$212,700,000 (2012: HK$232,126,000)
during the year as a result. Despite this, the relatively stable
markets outside Hong Kong had maintained the segment
turnover ratio at approximately 51% which was the same as the
year ended 31 March 2012.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 8% to approximately HK$206,195,000 (2012:
HK$223,592,000) which was mainly due to the impact on the
retail market by the global economic uncertainties during the

financial year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 84%, as compared to 81% of the previous
year. The gross profit margin was increased mainly due to the
sustained brand image which could demand higher premium on
the products sold during the year. Operating expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2013 totaled approximately
HK$334,940,000, compared to approximately HK$326,623,000
for 2012, increased by approximately 3%. The decrease in
turnover and increase in operating expenses, mainly staff costs
and rental expenses, had resulted in the decrease in operating
margin to 6% (2012: 11%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately
HK$20,029,000 (2012: HK$107,150,000), decreased by
approximately HK$87,121,000, 81%. Excluding the gain on
disposal of property and related income tax, the profit for last
year would be approximately HK$52,444,000 and the profit for
the year ended 31 March 2013 would be approximately 62% or
HK$32,415,000 lower as compared to last year. The decrease
was in line with the decrease in operating margin.

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$228 million (2012: HK$268 million). As at 31
March 2013, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$51 million (2012: HK$51
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$5
million (2012: HK$5 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2013, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 6.2 times (2012: 5.6 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2012:

zero).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$5 million (2012: HK$5 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2013, such obligations amounted to
HK$Nil (2012: HK$1 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed 880 (2012: 964)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the mainland China.
Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive levels while
bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee
benefits include mandatory provident fund, statutory and

medical insurance cover and training programmes.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 36
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr.
Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is currently a
member of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a
member of the executive committee of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council and a member of the council to the board
of Sowers Action. He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan
Pak Hei. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 54, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 36 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She is a member of the board of directors of Zonta Club
of New Territories. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman
of the Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and
Mr. Chan Pak Hei. Ms. Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.
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Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 62, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 36 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 35, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is a member of the Garment Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is the
son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 53, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 25
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 24 years’ experience in property
investment and management. Ms. Yu was appointed as China-
appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as
notary public in December 2009.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 22 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Certified Management
Accountants Society of British Columbia in Canada and holds a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from Queen’s University in

Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 50, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
about 30 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 43, is the chief operating officer of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 22 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom and a holder of the

practitioner’s endorsement of HKICS.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 25, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. Mr. Chan Pak Hei
holds a bachelor of arts degree in fashion management (fashion
retail) from University of Arts London. He is the son of Mr.
Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013. The only exception
is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.
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BEZZ-—Z=ZFZA=1t-HLFE BFTHEX During the year ended 31 March 2013, five board meetings
EEEEZR HP-REBDRBLHRBIMEI4 were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
BA27REBEFEAEFHTESETEZEMEF paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
RAZHITESEAREZREMBET - FES2ZH that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
FERHHMT : directors without the executive directors of the company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

HE R 8
E=x Director Attendance record
BREARFE Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
®BIOELZ L Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
BRERRE Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
BREZEE Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
REZztL Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
REHEE Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
ERELZ L Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5
BE-_E-—=—E=-H=+—HLtEE . LEF—K During the year ended 31 March 2013, one general meeting, the
A REEEAS BRBEES>HEERED annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each
mE director is set out as follows:

H R &
= Director Attendance record
BRERANTEE Mr. Chan Yum Kit 11
®IGEZ L Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
BREBLE Mr. Chui Hing Yee 1/1
BRELEE Mr. Chan Sze Chun 11
RELLT Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 11
REEHEEE Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/1
ERRLZ T Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1/1
EETEEHEAKRECEBER  LIERKEER The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
BRfE & EREK - business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.
ESENECHACOINESZRSREEALR The relationship among members of the board is separately
NHHEE - disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.
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B DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
EREZFCAAVNAREREREZEI 2R - The directors have provided records of the training they received
BRESEITHZFERINMOT ¢ to the company. The details of training records of each director

are set out as follows:

= gk A8 BIRAE P& R
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
RARLE BEEARBRESRE BEBETALE 1.5/

(Employers’ liability insurance and
employees’ compensation claims)

—E-=f=ZA=ttH

Mr. Chan Yum Kit Employers’ liability insurance Hong Kong Institute 1.5 hours
and employees’ compensation of Certified Public
claims Accountants

27 March 2013

®OBrt EXEARERESHEE BEEHMAE 1.5/
(Employers’ liability insurance and

employees’ compensation claims)

—E-=F=ZHA=++tH

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Employers’ liability insurance Hong Kong Institute 1.5 hours
and employees’ compensation of Certified Public
claims Accountants

27 March 2013

HRERLE TEEEEHRE KA TTH 287§
—E-“F+ZAtNHETAIA ABARLERD
—F-=f—-A=t+=HAZE=tZ=H

Mr. Chui Hing Yee Corporate taxes annual Great strategy 28 hours
return and settlement Taxpayers’ Club

18-19 December 2012
22-23 January 2013

.I é Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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= AR A EIRME Fr &
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
REEZEE BRRTPEKRERNSR2013 EBEFRREBE T/NEF

(HK & China investment outlook 2013)
—EF-=FZA=ttH
Mr. Chan Sze Chun HK & China investment Hong Kong Securities & 1 hour
outlook 2013 Investment Institute
27 February 2013

REELL EFHEMBHHM EEHEMERA 2/NEE
BYFHITEERE
(KPMG INED Forum)
—Z--"H+=AtH

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian KPMG INED Forum KPMG 2 hours
10 December 2012

REBEEE RERS, REEE-FHK EBBTHELE 2/NBF
HIERBIEXI » XIVRXIVATE
(Insider dealing/inside information
— Parts XIII ~ XIV and XIVA of SFO)
—E-=F=AZ+H

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney Insider dealing/inside Hong Kong Institute 2 hours
information — Parts XIII, of Chartered
XIV and XIVA of SFO Secretaries

26 March 2013

ERRZ LT FRECHONERTED =R EES 1.5/ K
(The global reach of China luxury)
—E2-=Z%-AtNH

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen The global reach of China KPMG 1.5 hours
luxury
18 January 2013
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TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2013 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the chairman and the chief

executive.

.I 8 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, four remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

i FE 50 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, determined the
discretionary bonuses of the executive directors and approved
the terms of executive directors’ service agreements, non-
executive director’s appointment and benefits-in-kind of senior

management.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
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The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

A
HK$ Number of person
Nil — 1,000,000 2
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

7 and 8 to the financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent

auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT

HK$

Bt R Audit services 1,635,000
BT IR Non-audit services 401,000
2,036,000

2 O Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu
Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports
to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

H R 8
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 373

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the
nature and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in

relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and
evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the directors were
dedicated to implement various initiatives to further enhance the
existing internal control system alongside with the ongoing

business development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group
regarding their responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 32 and 33.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.

If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the
proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to
be convened.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands and
has its registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F, Kodak House 2, 39
Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

At no time during the year have the director, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 34 to 134.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages

135 and 136.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$20,029,000 (2012: HK$107,150,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of Hong Kong 3 cents per share (2012:
interim dividend of Hong Kong 5 cents per share and special
dividend of Hong Kong 6 cents per share) was paid on 15
January 2013. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of Hong Kong 7 cents per share (2012: Hong
Kong 12 cents per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March
2013 to all shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members on 2 September 2013.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during

the year are set out in note 24(c) to the financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012).

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labour Insurance of Taiwan. Contributions to the defined

contribution scheme are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Sze Chun, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian and Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with article 87 of the company’s articles of

association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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EERIETBRABRESF 2R DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

RZBE—=F=A=1+—H  XRARAEZEERFTET As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
BAERALARRABELIE (EERESFREPE directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
1R ([ 5 REEHEG D) EBXVER) 2 RH ~ HER underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
BREST  EERRARERSZRBERGIZE352 associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
e REFE2ETMARE  NERB(E BB Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
EXRGMERATR ([HRXMDBFHFLTRADT L register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
TRADFAHELTARNESETESRGNEEST as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
B (MBEFR D) MERABRBIAzERR AR Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
mT Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

REHzBHZERS BEMOEI
EEnA Beneficial interest Approximate percentage EEME
Name of director in shares of interests Nature of interest
REMAKE LIV
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 190,872,000 66.29% Corporate/Family
EY
2,100,000 0.73% Family
BA
2,100,000 0.73% Personal
(HteE(1)K(2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
mOERL DA RIR
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 190,872,000 66.29% Corporate/Family
EN
2,100,000 0.73% Family
BA
2,100,000 0.73% Personal
(HteE(1)K(2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
HREBELE BA
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 500,000 0.17% Personal
RB&EEE BA
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 900,000 0.31% Personal
BERRLL BA
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 30,000 0.01% Personal

2 8 Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by
Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested in
the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2013 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

29
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:
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HRROEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

Htat - Super ResultZ RANTIHBREE - LT RHBE
BEEDBEBEET46.7% > 46.7%86.6% °

BREMER EX[EERIBZTRAERNES <&
| —EHARARRAESREZTHRAE 2 EE
BERADARBIFZRPERMEBHMZRER
BEvErRfifaE RZFE-—=Ff=ZA=+—8"
WEEMATRADTDROIEERD P HEEER

RA o

EERENzkR

RERSIAFEEMER  BALQE  HERD
A -MEBLARARERMERRER -F AL 2E
AEZEWH  RNARAESHEREFETMEES -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

190,000,000 65.99% (K15E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which a director of the company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.
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Report of the Directors

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as set out in note 28(a) to
the financial statements fall under the definition of continuing
connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 34 to 134,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2013 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE—Z—=#=A=+—HI4E (AB#¥75I/R) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
i Fr S
Note $/000 $/000

LES | Turnover 3 418,895 455,718
SHEM AR Cost of sales (67,785) (85,584)
ER Gross profit 351,110 370,134
Haug A Other revenue 4 9,666 5,644
Hith (BE) Wz FHE Other net (loss)/income 4 (1,087) 291
HER 7R A Selling and distribution costs (262,275) (254,059)
TE R EAb Administrative and other

RERX operating expenses (72,665) (72,564)
R A Profit from operations 24,749 49,446
BE A Finance costs 5(a) (3) (1)
REVE 2 HERSE Valuation gains on investment properties 12 2,360 3,790
EEEgE AT 2 EiE Share of loss of an associate 14 (28) -
BEEEDRZ Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly

(BB/) &R controlled entity 15 (327) 255
B R 2 W s Gain on disposal of property - 65,516
BR Bt AT 3 R Profit before taxation 5 26,751 119,006
FEH Income tax 6(a) (6,722) (11,856)
FRRF Profit for the year 20,029 107,150
THALHEA: Attributable to:
ANA A R R Equity shareholders of the company 9 20,029 107,150
BREF Earnings per share 11
E-9IN Basic $0.07 5T $0.387C
s Diluted $0.07 T $0.387T

The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company attributable to the profit for the year are set out
in note 24(b).

FBRRI4ECHEBATERER 2D - EH
ADNFEERREEERNEN 2 ECTREFEHER
MizE24(b) °

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEZZT—=F=A=+—HILFE ABEIT) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
B & Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
FRRF Profit for the year 20,029 107,150
FRHEMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(BB =) (after tax) 10
BEBRBIRINKNE R F Exchange differences on translation
MR ZELER of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 452 7,134
FEBERLHREEY Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings
ZEfER held for own use 43,424 28,719
43,876 35,853
FREEKSZAE Total comprehensive income for the year 63,905 143,003
AN LR Attributable to:
RRRERRR Equity shareholders of the company 63,905 143,003
FRBEBIEZMEBAGBERER 2D ° The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZT—=4=A=+—H (LLB%F|’R) At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-=F —E-——F
2013 2012
Mt & Tr Fr T Fx
Note $’000 $/000 $7000 $7000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets
-REMHE — Investment properties 12 31,370 29,010
- HihBEEEE — Other fixed assets 12 417,995 373,457
449,365 402,467
REE DT 2 EH Interest in an associate 14 972 =
REERR 2R Interest in a jointly controlled
entity 15 - -
Hitn g = Other assets 16 14,173 12,915
BELEFEHEE Deferred tax assets 23(b) 7,166 8,972
471,676 424,354
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 17 59,311 49,499
FEWERR R M FEUFR Trade and other receivables 18 56,929 54,451
Al EERIE Tax recoverable 23(a) 79 1,065
RERBRTER Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 227,962 267,908
344,281 372,923
mEAE Current liabilities
EARAREMENST Trade and other payables 20 50,326 54,322
F& A5 B 18 Tax payable 23(a) 5,098 12,112
55,424 66,434
REBEEFE Net current assets 288,857 306,489
BEERRBAMBMEME Total assets less current liabilities 760,533 730,843
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
BEFRBHEE Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 59,216 50,242
EERE NET ASSETS 701,317 680,601

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZZ—=F=A=+—8 (LUBHIR) At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-=F —E-——F
2013 2012
g3 T Tr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $7000 $7000
BEXRHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 24(c) 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 698,437 677,721
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 701,317 680,601
EEeN S =FEXA-+LHtAEZEWLHTRYE o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2013.
)
)
) EE Directors
BREA BI55E )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FEBRIMBEBZHEBARBERET 2 —D o The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

RZT—=4=A=+—H (LLB%F|’R) At 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-=F —E-——F
2013 2012
B = Fr Tr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $7000 $7000
ERBEE Non-current assets
REBLARZER Interest in subsidiaries 13 258,925 222,426
REEE Current assets
FEWERF R WS Trade and other receivables 18 44,109 75,109
RERBRITER Cash and bank deposits 19(a) 878 7,651
44,987 82,760
REEE Current liabilities
FEF BRI E b (T Trade and other payables 20 1,938 2,253
REBEEFE Net current assets 43,049 80,507
EEFE NET ASSETS 301,974 302,933
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24(a)
[N Share capital 2,880 2,880
(G4 Reserves 299,094 300,053
BRREER TOTAL EQUITY 301,974 302,933
EEepN-—E—=-EAA-+LtABELHFTRE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2013.
)
)
) EZE Directors
BRERA BI5E )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FBRIB4EZMEBARTBREK 2 -85 ° The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE—Z—=4=A=+—HI4FE (LAB¥5I/R) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R

BEY

EE  ERRE
BH#LR  Landand LT
Rx  BRGBEE HfRE EARE  Sawtory  buldng REER Ei
Share Share Other  Exchange reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity

st T i T i T i T T
Note  §000 000 000 000  $'000  §'000  §'000  $000

R-E--EMA-RAz&sH Balance as at 1 April 2011 2,822 58,715 121 25,683 9336 188,780 313,182 598,639
8--F/-IF2 Changes in equity for 2011/12:

EREE:
i Profit for the year - - - - - - 107,150 107,150
A2 AN Other comprehensive income 10 = - - 7,134 - 28719 - 35,853
PEUEEE Total comprehensive income - - - 713 - 28719 107,150 143,003

REERENSRTZRA Shares issued under share

option scheme 24(c) 58 6,612 = - - = = 6,670
LECHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)iii) - - - - - - (36677 (36,677)
AEEBERZKS Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) = = - = = - (31,034 (31,034
R-8-Z£=f Balance at 31 March 2012
St-RAe 2,680 65,327 121 32,817 9336 217,499 352,621 680,601
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A T RE A B B R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—Z—=#=A=+—HI4E (AB#¥75I/R) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s )4

BEN

EE  ERRE
BH#LE  landand BRR
R&  ROHEE EURE EXRE  Sattoy building REEH Ei
Share Share Other  Exchange reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity

W fx fx & TR TR fR fR TR
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000

R-E-“EMA-RAz&s Balance as at 1 April 2012 2,680 65,327 121 32,817 9336 217,499 352,621 680,601
g2 /-Zf2 Changes in equity for 2012/13:
Ri25:

s Profit for the year - - - - - - 20009 20029
A2 EkE Other comprehensive income 10 - - - 452 - 344 - 13876
PEUEEE Total comprehensive income - - - 45) - 8344 2009 63,905
LEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (3455 (34)552)
REEBERZRE Dividend declared in respect

of the current year 24(b)(i) = = - = = - (8,037) (8,037)
R-8-z%=A Balance at 31 March 2013

St-AER 2,880 65,327 121 33,269 9336 260923 329461 701,317
BABEB4EZHEBATBHRER 2 —FD - The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial
statements.
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2T

HAEBESWER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

=#=fB=+—HIFE (AB%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—-= —E-—CF
2013 2012
o = Fr T Fr Fr
Note $/000 $/000 $7000 $7000
RETEH Operating activities
REHEBEEZ2HE  Cash generated from operations 19(b) 33,682 82,064
ENHIEA Tax paid
—ENEBNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (7,033) (4,803)
—BABBEIEH — Income tax outside
P18 Bt Hong Kong paid (4,794) (8,470)
RETBREZ Net cash generated from
HEFHE operating activities 21,855 68,791
REED Investing activities
FREE=EA#% Decrease in deposits with banks
B2 8RAT with maturity more than
FRBD three months when placed - 58,756
BABEEENN Payment for purchase of
fixed assets (22,643) (18,879)
HEBTEEEMBNIE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 430 320
BRI Interest received 3,575 3,515
HEWHEZHENRIE  Net sales proceeds from the
R disposal of a property - 103,015
REES (FTA) Net cash (used in)/generated from
FEzREeFEE investing activities (18,638) 146,727
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mAEBEmER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_Z—=F=F=t+—HI4E (LLB%5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—= —E-—CF
2013 2012
it = Fr T T T
Note $7000 $/000 $7000 $000
BMEEH Financing activities
RIZERESTBIZ4T  Proceeds from shares issued
IR 13 T & KO8R under share option scheme - 6,670
2FE Interest paid (3) (1)
2RRE Dividends paid (43,189) (67,711)
MEFBAAZ Net cash used in financing
REFE activities (43,192) (61,042)
fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@% Net (decrease)/increase
WD) BInFEE in cash and cash equivalents (39,975) 154,476
REDZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REEEY at beginning of the year 265,205 109,628
EXgB o0& Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 29 1,101
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at end of the year 19(a) 225,259 265,205

FBEB4EZHEBABHRER 22— -

The notes on pages 43 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.
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Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is

set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

TEEHBER(E)

MBHREZmBUEE
BE_Z-=Ff=ZB=1+-HLFEZ
REMBBRREERADTAREHEB A
(ZBABIAEE]) UREAEEREE D
AREE DA 2R -

REMBERARAZAEEERESE
BASE METHEETIUD AENER (R
TXZEstBUERFTEE) BRI :

- REWX(RME1N) S R

- HtfAET#HREREY ZHEHEL
WU HMERERE S B (RWE
1(@&1(h)) °

RHLENE(BERMBREER) 2§
BHAFZEEBELHE G RRE
& MZEHE - At REREERE
ZERRMBAHRcEERAE  WAKREK
XERE - ZE AT RBRERIDREB
FEBEEEERGEREAEBRTIE
BEERAMAZRRELEMEL - A5
FERBREERER B AR E AR
MEH2EERBBEZREEMEL MG
B BERBFHAERFIRNMGETE
=

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2013 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and
the group’s interest in an associate and a jointly

controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group and the company. Of
these, the following development is relevant to the

group’s financial statements:

—  Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBER(E)

(0 BIFRKz22D (&)

(BEBMBRELRF7TR BT £
BMTA: H%E/
(BERBMBREER) B7R2BITAR
E o BBBRAPRRTEEERR ZEHE
ZETHEERYETZAUERA 2CEE
TRMEEZAMNFESEABERELET
KE MIAwmEREEISZMRELE R
i BRBARKMEFRELBSEB 2
RESEE - AEERNBEHBRAHEL
EETEARBEEITAEARAEHHH
FHEBECEAERHEEEE -

d) KIEAF
MELRREZIAEEEGNAR - EX
SEHAREXENBARANMBNELER
R WHELREDFBTEEGERNS - ERX
BEHEE BAUTENEEMERREE
REERHFENEE -

SERWBARNREDBEHMIK R
HEERERKREAPLERSBBRE
PEREFE - RERIERNGRENEE
AR5 RHEEEWERRERER 19
ERRGEVBERRBEDBEN - KER
BREMEENRERBRHOEEL R
BEARSIEFEE - BEFFEIRNEE
REETRCEREEC HBERE-

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain
disclosures to be included in the financial statements
in respect of transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety and for any continuing
involvement in transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when the
related transfer transaction occurred. However, an
entity need not provide the disclosures for the
comparative period in the first year of adoption. The
group did not have any significant transfers of
financial assets in previous periods or the current
period which require disclosure in the current

accounting period under the amendments.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(e)

In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the group or
company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the group or
company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the group or company
and one or more of the other parties share joint

control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see notes 1(i)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(e)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)
When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the
group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the group’s net
investment in the associate or the jointly controlled

entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its associates and
jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a jointly
controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate.

In the company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates and jointly controlled entities are stated at

cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(q)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
1(h).

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other fixed assets (continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 1(i)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

(b

Other fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being 50 years from the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
5 years and the
period of the lease

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

()

Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

-  property held under operating leases that

would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));

and

- land held for own use under an operating

lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal

payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entity (including those
recognised using the equity method (see
note 1(e))) the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 1(i)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with note 1(i)(ii).




1. EEFHBEEA)
() EBEERMEHE)
(i) REIFBFKRERAEMENSZHE

(#48)

R R R A IR 2 R AR
RREMREBERRR At
BMEE BREBBRRZBEE
FREERMATRRRERER
BEzZ8tE BEREEESH
BEEZERANERNE (&K
NRAZEEEFELH Z2ER
MR)ETIHR (HITRIEE
BEX)  RMEEEHBRELE
Bt E (AT BHRGTE
) MR BB LT RRE - 35
BREEML EREEN KRR
RERENRBERFHEE
ERRCARBEHEENBE
BIEER— R ERE -

il &R EBRERR BB
Lo MAFB -RRESER
REBRECEMHER AER
BEBRBOEESSE - BE
BREZBETEREEE Z2KRE
SHBBEENTIFERER
REMBEBREMECEE 2
HE -

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.
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(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESEEEAE)
() EBEEREE)

(i) REIFBFRERAEMENSZHE
(#4&)
HEBEECHENEEDEEM
$# BEESERWIRT R HthER
SRR~ T Uy EE B 3 JF S AT AR
ZEZRWERERZEBABERE
BIBRSM - EULBER T - RERZBE
BRUBEBRTE - HAEEER
REWE R AR R 2 S B - Al
RTTHEOESHSEEREZEK
BRATRE MERBRTERSR
AzEB2EMEHESRED - &
ZHAFABBRZ2RBEEHEREK
B AEEzRESRED - BE
ReHMBB R EAEEME A
R EFRBIRESRER o

(ii) R EEBE
FEEEELEERFRARIBMIIR
MEE  UBEETEEE REMH
YRR BRI BB HBREY
R RRUERANBESETE
FEHSERD -

MRBBERETR  BEMEE=Z
BEEMTUWEEE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@i

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the balance sheet date to identify
indications that fixed assets (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts) may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t 5 7



S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFBR (&)
(i) BE®REGE)
(i) ErtEEpE (F)
- HEGEED

fieh & A LA TEE T AT U 1= 4 R Y
SFERERRNRL EEHE
EREBEED - friEE AR
EEBEUBRRREEEFER
HEBEMECEENEER
HEERR o FrEEHRER
BERABLNFERNTARE
R o

(i) HRIRI & R A
RBC(BRIES EMRAD » A&
BARE(E B ER) HE3458
(PR HERE IR BRFEE S E
ARAPHPBHRSE - NP HTE
K AEERARSBFETER
BHRAzE—RENR - BR R 3R
B {5k 4 (R BEEE1()() B (i) °

G) FE
FEURAR ISR FEME T HBRKE
BEARK-

BALTELHENE AR RERER
BAAR  MIRAREEFEXRESRAM
BAE IR E A o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@i

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and

(if)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.




1. EEFHBEEA)

()]

(k)

]

wE (&)
AEHRFEEUNAEEBRBREFNME
EERETHEEREEREWMEE R
REFE2H -

PR &7 S 1 BRTE £ 2R 2 B A TR
ANPBAERA/IL - FEBEMEE
AERFERFENAEREE 9EHR
WEBENBBAEIAZL - FEN
EMMsEER 2% - HEHRELONERE
NEABCIEIHNEFEBRRD

i Wi R R B EL it FE WK

FEWIRF R LW RS ANRA LET
1B HREABRR R EREBHEKARR
BRZBERETIE (RIEE1G) - R
REOBEBRATFLHEEEER N 2%
BERSNRZLEBLTERRID - £
ZERRT - BYFRRRANER R ZHE
BEwoE-

FE 15 B 0 B L At BB A 3K
BAERRREMENRENRD AET
B BRUBEREEREME1(G)E
S BERRRFR H A R E R
ROME > RIFFRHELREKN  Flt
BRT AR ASIE -

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

(k)

(U]

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and

on hand, demand deposits with banks and other

financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible into known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Share-based payment (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the

extent that they relate to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which

case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the balance
sheet date unless the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEGTEE(FE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) FTEHL(#&) (0) Income tax (continued)
REFSHMELEMESHREGRREZE Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
E0BR  XYAFRFEE - MEARE movements therein, are presented separately from
RAEEEEETERALBFRAEHRE each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
EREARAEHEAE  LEFSUTH offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
TIRMRERT - BIZABBIE & &= A K 8 assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or
FEBIREE  RELEREHEER K the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
SHIELEFISHEE : current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- PBAHAEHEENEGEMS & — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
RABAREEERFHEEEL company or the group intends either to settle on
B O RANEREZEENFEZE a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
& =% liability simultaneously; or
- REZEMESHEENEGEMS & — in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
LEENEBEYNANR —HBKE they relate to income taxes levied by the same
MUTHAR—BBRHFAEHER : taxation authority on either:
- BE-—EREHRER N —  the same taxable entity; or
- TRMNERTEE SLER — different taxable entities, which, in each
=T8I R R B EFEFT A REE future period in which significant amounts
ESHEEEEEEAKE of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
IR P S B E & W LA E A9 H expected to be settled or recovered, intend
B RFEEEZR AR to realise the current tax assets and settle the
SHEENEELAHMESE current tax liabilities on a net basis or
B BEEERZEENZE realise and settle simultaneously.
ZEfE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESEEEAE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) FPBHBBER  EHERIEEE (F) (p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i) BEMEERAEEEE

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

MEREELAQNRARTHEN
EHERBELREREERT  MET
ZEBAPSERSERBREN
S WRAIEH AT SR fhE - EBE
REEERHETENAE A ER
REGB WREWFHEEEN
AR ETEBERXHNRE
ST O o

fisf 5 4% 75 R 28 S 7R B9 7T BE M ERVE
FRELZHEEBBEFL RN
it FEEREBREAREAE;
BRUNEEEEFNDINRN TN
BEBERI - AR FERIZRAK
REHREBRETEBRERDFE
BAER TERBEAIBEE:
B8R 20 A 7 ) 25 S0 R B9 7T BE M AR MK
BUBRSN ©
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Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

()

(ii)

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEGEE(E) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() SNEBRE(E) (r) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i) (%) (i) (continued)
EHERBRINERE  BZEE On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
BAEBERECRTELERSE the cumulative amount of the exchange
BREE 2R R E B R RRE differences relating to that operation outside
BEFOBEEERK - Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

() BERE (s) Borrowing costs
HUEE - ZEREEEE (BAAFER— Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
BEREELIUFREABRRHFEEZE acquisition, construction or production of an asset
E)MEERGOBERRNGBIEZERE which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
ZEBD A o EffE E A EEEN get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
BPIERSZ © part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(t BBAL () Related parties
(1) MEATAL BIZALTHZAL (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s
REREEEEHE . family, is related to the group if that person:
() EHRHBEEHER (i) has control or joint control over the group;
(i) BEBEEALE & (ii) has significant influence over the group; or
(i) REEREEZARAZEEE (iii) is a member of the key management
BEEKE - personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A EESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

group or an entity related to the group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 12(c), 12(d) and 25 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses annually whether fixed assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the assets would be
determined by reference to value in use and fair value
less cost to sell. Value in use is determined using the
discounted cash flow method. Due to inherent risk
associated with estimations in the timing and
magnitude of the future cash flows and fair value less
cost to sell, the estimated recoverable amount of the
assets may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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22

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of trade
debtors are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of
trade debtors is the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The group uses all available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of this

estimation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.

3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Turnover
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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3.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geographical

locations. In a manner consistent with the way in

which information is reported internally to the group’s

most senior executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment, the

group has presented the following two reportable

segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in the Mainland
China and sales of house brands and imported
brands in Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and

Singapore.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable
to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of

assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment profit is
profit from operations. Income tax is not

allocated to reportable segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. BEERDI®E (&) 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y 2E|ME (H) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) DEBEAE(E) (i)  Segment results (continued)

FEBZIBEERREBLEE
HarEEEsTHREEASE
BB AMBHRRILEZIIA
TERIMBEERAE -

ATFEHRI WS BEREM 1
BASE ST BRMER -

BE-ZE-—=HF=ZA=t+—-HILHE
E FHEOAEERSTHREEA
ERMBUSRERRTGDIHRR
ZREBEETFEHRSB2ERRTI

Segment assets and liabilities of the group are not
reported to the group’s most senior executive
management regularly. As a result, reportable
segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in these financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.

Information regarding the group’s reportable
segments as provided to the group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and assessment of segment

mT performance for the year ended 31 March 2013 is
set out below:
BB EREM @
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
“§-=f “B-"%& -B-=f “E-_E -“E-=F “E-_F
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
r r r T i i
$000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
PREFKE Revenue from external customers 206,195 223592 212,700 232,126 418,895 455718
A HERE Inter-segment revenue 50,190 30,189 49562 32271 99,752 62,460
AT2H2HBUE Reportable segment revenue 256,385 253,781 262,262 264397 518,647 518,178
EF2RAPEA/ (BR) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 20,869 28,131 (4,699 15380 16,170 43,511
BAERZAELA Interest income from bank deposits 195 704 3,281 2,911 3,476 3,615
BERA Finance costs 3) (1) - = (3) (1)
ERiE Depreciation for the year (10,713) (9,265) (14,925) (14,665  (25,638) (23,930
EEEEZAE Impairment of fixed assets (1,127)  (1,857)  (4253) (1,779 (5,380)  (3,636)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. BEBENIIPHE (&) 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y DE®E (HE) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) BFZ2HDEBwm 25 (i) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss
—E-=F —EB-——F
2013 2012
Fr Tr
$'000 $000
Uk Revenue
REATEHRD M2 B W= Total revenue from reportable segments 518,647 518,178
7 EB I 2= 5 88 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (99,752) (62,460)
ma s Consolidated revenue 418,895 455,718
i Fl Profit
ATEHRD @A Reportable segment profit 16,170 43,511
Hit AR (&1E8) Other revenue and net (loss)/income
Wy &5 8 8,579 5,935
& AN Finance costs 3) (1)
REVE 2 HERE Valuation gains on investment properties 2,360 3,790
EBiiEE AT 2B Share of loss of an associate (28) -
EitEEARZ Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly
(B518) &R controlled entity (327) 255
HEW %z s Gain on disposal of property - 65,516
BB A AR SRR Consolidated profit before taxation 26,751 119,006
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3.

EXBERDIBPH|E (&) 3.

(b)

DEIRE (F)
(iii) EEH

TRBIBBEDEAEEIAREF W
@ RIWVAEEEEERE - BE D
ARGEQAR(EBEFRRBEE]
ZHWBNEBER BEFZHBNE
DREREBEEIXTERZNVE
BE - EEFRDEEZHENE
DRBEEEZERNE (HEWE
RE KR8 R A& i Bh (i B A B

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the group’s fixed
assets, associate and jointly controlled entity
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods

delivered. The geographical location of the

ERNRREE DT ZER) MEE ° specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and the location
of operations, in the case of interests in associate

and jointly controlled entity.

HREF Wi

Revenue from

EEFRBEE
Specified

external customers non-current assets

2= CZ—E--f ZB-=ZF ZE--F

2013 2012 2013 2012

Tr T T T

$/000 $/000 $000 $/000

&8 (M) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 206,195 223,592 332,419 293,007
P B K B Mainland China 122,243 158,826 114,932 104,858
=) Taiwan 40,337 40,684 1,221 764
HAth B = Other countries 50,120 32,616 1,765 3,838
212,700 232,126 117,918 109,460

418,895 455,718 450,337 402,467

(v BEHEEEFZEH

(iv) Information about major customers

BE-_Z-—=FR-_FT——F=A4
=Et—BLFE  $IEREE—H
RAEPZRSEAEERBIAE
PU BT 210%3 L L o

During the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012,
there was no single external customer that
contributed 10% or more of the group’s total

revenue from external customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. HtWAR (BE) WEFE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/INCOME
—E-=F —E-—_F
2013 2012
Fr T
$7000 $'000
Habg A Other revenue
RITERZFEWA Interest income from bank deposits 3,476 3,615
REVERSWALLE Gross rental income from
investment properties 653 689
i85 3=1 0N Service fee income 918 803
Hth Others 4,619 537
9,666 5,644
Hith (&8) W& FHE Other net (loss)/income
HEBTEEEZ (B5B) WEFE  Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets (50) 320
[EREE R Net exchange loss (1,037) (29)
(1,087) 291
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. BB AR 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRBADER S MBR 7 (GTA) : Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
—E-=F —E-—F
2013 2012
Fr T
$/000 $/000
(@ MWMERAE (@) Finance costs
RITERZFE Interest on bank advances 3 1
by EIRAF(FEBEES (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
B (HaE7)) remuneration (note 7))
REMRFRNET S Contributions to defined contribution
Z B retirement plan 8,109 6,938
e - IERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 90,885 88,588
98,994 95,526
(0 EAEE (c) Other items
ZEE & Auditors’ remuneration
— %R — audit services 1,855 1,774
— HAh R — other services 589 857
e Depreciation 25,638 23,930
EE&EEZHERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 5,380 3,636
TREEY K Operating lease charges in respect
HEEH of land and buildings
- REHEEFRK — minimum lease payments 141,548 138,479
- E5HE — contingent rentals 16,178 15,261
EWRENEB SR Rentals receivable from investment
HER%2,0007T properties less direct outgoings
(ZF—=% :2,0007T) of $2,000 (2012: $2,000) (651) (687)
TFE R (BtaE17(b) Cost of inventories * (note 17(b)) 67,785 85,584
# FEKAH20,899,000T (ZF — ZF : # Cost of inventories includes $20,899,000 (2012:
19,294,0007T) * BFEEIREA - TERK $19,294,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
CHEER  FRBETETA LRSS operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the
N EES (b) BY 5 2B B X A FR R o respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in

note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. MEBERFARZAEBH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HEBEBERATZAEHAE: (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—E-—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
Tr T
$000 $'000
FHBE-FRBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
NEERME Provision for the year 3,682 9,065
BEFE (BERE) (Over)/under-provision in respect
BETE of prior years (530) 5
3,152 9,070
KEHE - b Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
TEERE Provision for the year 3,881 6,345
BEFEBRRME Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,241) (732)
2,640 5,613
EEREHR Deferred tax
IRMERCELERERD Origination and reversal
of temporary differences 930 (2,827)
6,722 11,856
R-B—=ECEBFNERBENRE The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013 is
FRZEFTERF ENIKI6.5% (== calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of the estimated
—ZF 1 165%)stE - REAREFE assessable profits for the year. Taxation for the
(THE]) BREIMEB AT ZFIEIEE People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas
AR EAIEEERA 2RI RE subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates

of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.
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6.

REBBERMTZAEH (F)

(@)

RERBERMRZAERS : ()

RIBEBERELERBTER  EHRE
IEiE SR AEBERIIMEB AR 2EH
EEMERERE-_ZEN\F—A—HiE
REFERBRI15%BZEME25% (ZEF
NE20%; —FE—FF :122%; =F
——F124%; ZE—ZF 125%; =F
—=F 125%) °

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HLEEEH
B NABEBRIINEZHE AR ZER
BEAIBABI7%(ZE—ZF 1 17%) &
17% (ZZB—=F 1 17%) °

MRIFEGARE  SHAEEAREEER
RABZHECEE—ZZTLF+=A
St —HRZBEEZEREE 2D KIZ
10%BL R HMFAIT o ARAEBEE
ErEYHERTIMRILZMBLARE
BEXERE  HETERENRERMERAZ
MEA% HREAEEEIEARAER
DIRZERF > B A& B30 B 5 K%
ERBEFEM 2B EERELERIEE
11,424,000 (=& — = F :
10,087,0007T) °

6.

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income
tax laws, regulations and implementation guidance
notes, the statutory income tax rate applicable to the
group’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen increases from 15%
to 25% progressively within five years from 1 January
2008 (2009: 20%; 2010: 22%; 2011: 24%; 2012:
25%; 2013: 25%).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan and
Singapore are 17% (2012: 17%) and 17% (2012: 17%)

respectively.

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $11,424,000 (2012: $10,087,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. HEBEBRIIRZFIBH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)
by BEXHESFHEANRBEABREFEZ (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
AR profit at applicable tax rates:
—E-=F —E-—fF
2013 2012
Fr T
$/000 $000
BR%E AT V% A Profit before taxation 26,751 119,006
BRERBERBREREERS Notional tax on profit before taxation,
BEANHNBRAREGE calculated at the rates applicable to
BB AR 2 BEHIE profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 6,359 20,732
TAMB 2 HBEEE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,824 295
BAFHBA RIS E Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (272) (1,816)
FEIMBEARAEBERS  Tax effect of the income tax holiday
2T E of a PRC subsidiary - (3,239)
AERBRBHEEZBHEEE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,
HBRAFECE AEEE net of utilisation during the year 376 (3,304)
TRMEZRMEERER Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax
EERB2RBEZE arising from temporary differences 206 (85)
BEFEBERRE Over-provision in respect of prior years 1,771) (727)
EMBESH Actual tax expense 6,722 11,856
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. BEEME 7. DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
BRIEBEEB(RRGROD FE161FIBRzESHE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
WM of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
M-
BER
BNER B
Salaries,  EEERA  GHEER
EZ#E  allowances Dis-  Retirement
Directors’ and henefits  cretionary scheme @t
fees in kind honuses ~ contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ZB-Z% 2013
HITEE Executive directors
RAK Chan Yum Kit - 5,774 = 15 5,789
#E Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,824 - 15 3,839
HER Chui Hing Yee - 2,617 70 15 2,702
BE#% Chan Sze Chun - 857 60 15 932
BY#ETEE Independent non-executive directors
RE8 Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
FEK Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 13,072 130 60 13,442
—E-C& 2012
HTEZE Executive directors
RIA Chan Yum Kit - 5726 - 12 5,738
#I5E Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,776 - 12 3,788
HER Chui Hing Yee - 2,524 70 12 2,606
RA&K Chan Sze Chun - 846 60 12 918
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive directors
Ri% Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
PR3 Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
BE Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,872 130 48 13,230
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. EEMe (& s
e ZURBYEMNESEONESRMUZEE
T REEY 2 HEMESL2,743,000T (= F
— 4% :2,580,0007T) °

8. BESMe&AL 8.
NMI(ZE—ZF M) BRaMeALH - @
N(ZE—ZF . Ou) EZ 2SS RKHEE7
EHE - HSM (ZF——F : ML) A
ZENEHEENT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,743,000 (2012: $2,580,000) which represents
the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the six (2012: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2012: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2012: two)

individuals are as follows:

—E—-=F —E-—F

2013 2012

Fr T

$'000 $000

FeRkHEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 1,921 1,842
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 62 124
RN B Retirement scheme contributions 15 12
1,998 1,978

ZMAL(ZE-——F mu)MEKRS AT ZM
EETHEER :

The emoluments of the two (2012: two) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

A"
Number of individuals
—E-=fF —E:-—CF
$ 2013 2012
Z£-1,000,0007T Nil = $1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001t —1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1 1
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9. XAQFHEZKRREMLEF
AR EERREGEFEEEFBE-FCHA

AATHMBHREANBE,770,0007T 2 E5HE (=
T—_F :%F6,200,0007T) °

FHMBBAERNRAFEEN 2H R :

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a loss of $1,770,000 (2012: profit
of $6,200,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s profit

for the year:

—E-—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
T T
$/000 $000
EHARDE I BEHE 2B Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit
RRELGE (BE),/ attributable to equity shareholders
i R BB dealt with in the company’s
financial statements (1,770) 6,200
RE-BENBRAZRERE Final dividends from a subsidiary
BERBEMRFE G attributable to the profit of the
A RO ROR A previous financial years, approved
and paid during the year 44,000 75,000
RRARRFER @R (Hfat24(a) Company’s profit for the year (note 24(a)) 42,230 81,200

FHRENRENTFALAERZRRKRE ZHE
BRI FE24(b) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. Hfto2mE K H 10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hitb2E KRR E O 2 BB R Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

—E-=% g%
2013 2012
¢ BEEX 5 28 BERX &5
Before Before
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax

amount  expense  amount  amount  expense  amount
Fr Fr Fr T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

BERBRINKE AT Exchange differences
BRGRCERER on translation of financial

statements of subsidiaries

outside Hong Kong 452 - 452 7,134 - 7,134
BRI REENZ Surplus on revaluation
EffRLR of land and buildings
held for own use 53,274 (9,850) 43,424 36,138 (7,419) 28,719
Hib2EKE Other comprehensive income 53,726 (9,850) 43,876 43,272 (7,419) 35,853
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SRER 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
@ BREXEF (@) Basic earnings per share
BREXBADREARRDEBEERR The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
REAEER20,029,000T (ZE— 4 : the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
107,150,00070) RAFEEHTEBR of the company of $20,029,000 (2012: $107,150,000)
INAEF19#287,930,0008 (=T —=F: and the weighted average number of 287,930,000
282,209,0008) st E M T : (2012: 282,209,000) ordinary shares in issue during

the year, calculated as follows:

BBERZINEFTEH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
—EB-=F —E-—_F
2013 2012
TR TR
000 "000
REDNBRTEBRRH Issued ordinary shares at beginning
of the year 287,930 282,130
TEBREZXE Effect of share options exercised
(Ktat24(c)) (note 24(c)) - 79

REREBRZMEFIIE  Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at end of the year 287,930 282,209
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. BRER (&) 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
by BREEERR (b) Diluted earnings per share

HRBEZE-F-—=F=ZA=+t—-RAL#HF Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
EXHEEBELE EEEBRTERER earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2013
AtBZE-—Z—=F=A=+—HLHF as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
Ez8REERFESREABRER - issue during the year ended 31 March 2013.

BE-Z-——_S=ZA=t—-HLEEZ The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
ERBFEANDBRELARNTDEEREER year ended 31 March 2012 is based on the profit
REEAEEFI107,150,0007T & i B hn#E attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
F1980284,857,000 5T E T : company for the year of $107,150,000 and the

weighted average number of 284,857,000 ordinary

shares calculated as follows:

ZER 2 NEFTE (1#E) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
—E—_—F
2012
TR
"000
R=ZA=+—HEEBR Weighted average number of ordinary
Z InfEFI9E shares at 31 March 282,209
BEBBREART 2 Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
BRETE T ERBRT under the company’s share option scheme
LBRZE (MiF22) for nil consideration (note 22) 2,648
R=ZA=t—HBEBRZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
InfEF I8 (HH) (diluted) as at 31 March 284,857
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEEE 12. FIXED ASSETS
NEH (@) The group
G Br
£E EHER
BOEEE
WA AESIR RAE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
buildingg ~ I¥%E  andofficc  BENE
held for own REH  equipment £8 RENE
usecarried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Mgt Investment @t
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
n r T n r T T
§'000 $'000 $7000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
AAE ! Cost or valuation:
W-Z--EMA-A At1 April 2011 320,828 6,411 22,388 40,87 390,454 520 415,674
k]S Exchange adjustments 2,233 m 198 443 2,985 - 2,985
£E Additions - 330 1,654 16,895 18,679 - 18,679
e Disposals - - (1081) (15144 (16225) - (16209)
EftRE Surplus on revaluation 36,138 - - - 36,138 - 36,138
B 2R BN Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (8,645) - - - (8,645) - (8,645)
NAERE Fair value adjustment = = = = = 3,790 3,790
RZB-ZEZA=f-R  ASTMach202 B0se4 G B 0 AnSse B0 4525%
fik: Representing:
FiA Cost - 6,852 23,159 43,021 73,032 - 73,032
fE-28-2% Valuation - 2012 350,554 = = - 350554 29010 379,564
350,554 6,652 23,159 43,021 423,586 29,010 452,59
RZE-Z#@E-H At 1 April 2012 350,554 6,852 23,159 43,021 423,586 29,010 452,596
EiA% Exchange adjustments - - 4 183 187 - 187
2E Additions - - 3,390 19,253 22,643 - 22,643
HE Disposals - - (1,073) (13,086) (14,159) - (14,159)
EftRE Surplus on revaluation 53,274 - - - 53,274 - 53,274
B BHEHE Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (9,667) - - - (9,667) - (9,667)
MERR Fair value adjustment = = = = = 2,360 2,360
RZB-ZEZA=1-R  AOTMach203 Jatel b LA AT ATSEed 3130507234
% Representing;
FiA Cost - 6,852 25,480 49,371 81,703 - 81,703
fE-28-Z% Valuation - 2013 394,161 = = - 394161 31370 425,531
394,161 6,652 25,480 49371 475,864 31,370 507,234
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@ *%£E# (@) The group (continued)
Bl B
B EKR
HAZRR
HEAESR kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
builings ~ I¥%E  andoffice ~ AENE
held for own REH  equipment £8 RENE
use carried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Mgt Investment it
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total ~properties Total

n r n r r n n
$'000 $7000 §'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000

Rt FERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

RZE--£0A-A At 1 April 2011 - 4,020 16,217 26,711 46,948 - 46,948
EXAR Exchange adjustments - 58 124 303 485 - 485
REENE Charge for the year 8,645 413 1,955 12917 23,930 - 23,930
HEEE Impairment losses - - - 3,636 3,636 - 3,636
LERBE Witten back on disposal - - (1,081) (15144 (16229) - (16,225)
EfiHH Elimination on revaluation (8,645) - = = (8,645) = (8,645)
RZB-ZEZA=T-H  At31 March 2012 - 4491 17,215 28,423 50,129 - 50,129
R-2-Z£MB-A At 1 April 2012 - 4,491 17,215 28,423 50,129 - 50,129
EiAE Exchange adjustments - - 2 66 68 - 08
AEEHE Charge for the year 9,667 43 2,144 13,404 25,638 - 25,638
HEER Impairment losses - - - 5,380 5,380 - 5,380
HEREM Written back on disposal - - (960) (12719 (13,679) = (13,679)
EftRHH Elimination on revaluation (9,667) - - - (9,667) - (9,667)
RZB-ZEZA=t-B  At31 March2013 - 4,914 18,401 34,554 57,869 - 57,869
BEFE: Net hook value:

RZZ-ZEZF=+-R  At31 March 2013 394,161 1,938 7,079 14817 41799 31370 449,365
RZZ-ZE=B=+-R  At31 March2012 350,554 2,361 5,944 14598 373457 29010 402,467
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12. BIEEE ()

(b)

(c)

(d)

WEEE
R-ZB—Z=F > ETHREELBENHEEE
B BArHAREEEEARELRRE - E
It EECEHEBEETEEE 2 Tl ERK
BH o MEBEEZREECE MH
5,380,0007T (=& — =4 : 3,636,0007T)
(GTATESHER D ERAIAR) o ATUEF
BNRBEZSEEMBEBZREELSE
U zEAEEMS -

RZBE—=F=F=+-—-H XEEZL
EMEURSERERRABOEEZ
FHSWAEBEHEZABRTEARE
ETEM - HERBLGEELIREHE
EFEERERLR (HEEERESA
BfEEEeE8 8T HNRAEEY
i B R R B BIL 2 K8R) #EAT o

RZZE—=F=A=+—8  X&EEEFE
BRzTtREEY > DSEALEZY
¥RACHERZBRESZABHSEE
WEATE R o (h{ET BRI BT & E TR
BB R A = (5 E R P B 31 B R
BRAEREZKR) ET EEREH
53,274,0007T (==& — =% : 36,138,000
7T) BEBEE S (HaE0) o

MERBEERZTHRBRENS BK
TRBFHEINR R-_ZT—=F=A8
=+—B2zKREE®%H84,098,0007T (=
ZT— " :86,440,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses

In 2013, certain cash generating units recorded losses
which indicate the related fixed assets might have
been impaired. As a result, the directors reviewed the
recoverable amount of the relevant fixed assets and
the carrying amount of such assets was written down
by $5,380,000 (2012: $3,636,000) (included in
“selling and distribution costs”). The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on value in use of the

cash generating units to which these assets belong.

The group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 March 2013 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location

and category of property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use were
revalued at 31 March 2013 at their open market value
by reference to recent market transactions of
comparable properties. The valuations were carried
out by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited who
has recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. Revaluation surplus of
$53,274,000 (2012: $36,138,000) has been transferred

to the revaluation reserve (note 10).

Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
the carrying amounts would have been $84,098,000
(2012: $86,440,000) at 31 March 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEEE (&) 12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(e) MEZREFEIMMT : (e) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
rEH
The group
—E-= —E-—_F
2013 2012
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
RE® In Hong Kong
- REHEE — Long leases 125,780 117,490
—-FHEE — Medium-term leases 186,000 160,610
—HRE — Short leases 6,190 4,590
BBHEIN Outside Hong Kong
-RHEEE — Long leases 17,073 15,755
—FhHEEE - Medium-term leases 90,488 81,119
425,531 379,564
Rk Representing:
LA R ESEREEEE B Land and buildings held for own use
2L REEY) carried at fair value 394,161 350,554
REMH Investment properties 31,370 29,010
425,531 379,564

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(U]

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

The group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

The group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:

rEHE

The group
—E—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
Fr T
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 1,464 391
—FREIFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 1,618 =
3,082 391
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. RMB AT 2= 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
NN
The company

—E—-=F —E-—F

2013 2012

Fr Fr

$/000 $000

FEEmRM  BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672

FE W BT 8 2 B RIE Amount due from a subsidiary 197,253 160,754

258,925 222,426
ERHEBATSEAERT fERERTE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
o, EESAEREEI R —ERKE - and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected to

be recovered within one year from the balance sheet date.

TRAAEEHEAT 2B - BEATH The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of
I FREEZROEAZER - the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

BROTRME RERHLA
RA& /i Proportion of ownership interest
AL BARf A5E

REEHY Particulars ~ BBER AR WEAR

Place of of issued and Group's 2] 2]
REER incorporation fully paid-up share/ ~effective ~ Held by the ~ Held by a IERH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABEARES 2,000RBREEI X 100% 100% - RELZR
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares Investment holding

of US§1 each

Always Profit Holdings ABATREE \REEIZR 100% - 100% REER

Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
EEERLT B 100REREET 100% - 100% FERM
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of $1 each TRE R B

Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #



13. R BRA T 2= (&)

13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BRTRAR KRERLA
R/ Proportion of ownership interest
A B BRZRfE A5E
REEHH Particulars ~ ERER AR08 WEAF
Place of ofissuedand  Group's oL 2]

NAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective ~ Held bythe ~ Held bya IERK
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
BHBEHBERLT B EERRRE 100% - 100% NHEBE
200,000% nxsA
BREEIT Sourcing of materials
E&MR1,800,0011 and property holding

SHEEIL

Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong Deferred non-voting

200,000 shares

of $1 each Ordinary

1,800,001 shares

of §1 each
RHEEBRAT B BEREE T 100% - 100% REZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment holding
BE(FR)ERLA B {RERER T 100% - 100% e R ¢
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of §1 each EHES
Trading of fashion
apparel and
accessories
RREARERAT BE JRERERIT 100% - 100% RERR
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Investment holding
RERSARLA B 1,008 REE T 100% - 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of §1 each Investment holding
Euro Legend Assets Limited ARERREE IREEIET 100% - 100% REZR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. AMB AT 2% (&) 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BEARAR BEERLP
RA& /i Proportion of ownership interest
A ERzRfE 150
REEHY Particulars ~ ERER A7 HWEAR
Place of of issued and Group's BE 2]
KR incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Held bythe  Held bya TEER
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
ARERAR iy 100REREE T 100% - 100% REZR
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of $1 each Investment holding
HRERERAA oy 300,0008% 100% - 100%  FERERHREH
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong BREEIT Retail of fashion apparel
300,000 shares of $1 each and accessories
YEREABERAA & IREREEIT 100% - 100% REBR
iMaroon International Company Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment holding
WERERRAA B 10,000k 8 REE T 100% - 100% NERE
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
R (BB ERAT g4 500,0008% 100% - 100% ZEBNRE
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong BREEIT RE
500,000 shares of §1 each Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories

RrERERAT Bk MRERERIT 100% - 100% REEZR
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. 5 REREE 100% - 100% SENERE
Singapore 15 D T REH

2 shares of SG$1 each Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories

ZeRRAA RBERHE IREEIXT 100% - 100% SEHHRE
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 REH

Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. RMIB AT 2= (&) 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRAR KRERLA
R/ Proportion of ownership interest
B BRZRfE A5E
REEHH Particulars ~ ERER AR08 WEAF
Place of of issued and Group's KA 5E
NAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective ~ Held bythe ~ Held bya IERK
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
ARREARRAT B 500,000 100% - 100%  BERHBHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong BREEIT Retail of fashion
500,000 shares of $1 each apparel and accessories
RERERERLT B 500,000 100% - 100%  BERHBHRES
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong BREEIT Retail of fashion
500,000 shares of $1 each apparel and accessories
ERRRAT ABERZHE IREEIXT 100% - 100% REZR
Profair Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
RERRARLA B BEREE R 100% - 100%  FERERHRES
Regal Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
ERRAARAT B 1,008 8 REE T 100% - 100% NERE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of §1 each Property holding
ERARERRLA BE {REREEIT 100% - 100% REZR
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of §1 each Investment holding
ERERAT ABERRHE 10,000R B REEIXT 100% - 100% REEZR
Sosuccess Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
REARERAE ABEAREE IREEIXT 100% - 100% REZRK
Timepro International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment holding
RHBRERAT AP fax 100% - 100%  FEHHRHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau 25,0008 70 Retail of fashion
Registered capital apparel and accessories
MOP25,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

* REPEEAEMZIEBEERE -

13. RMBAT z &= (&) 13. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRAR KEERLA
RA& /i Proportion of ownership interest
AL BA2ifE ARE
REEHH Particulars ~ BRER A28 WEAT
Place of of issued and Group's 2] o]
LKL incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Held bythe ~ Held bya IERH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
ZRRERRAF B EERERT 100% - 100% REZR
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of §1 each Investment holding
RESNERAT B 500,0008 100% - 100%  BHRGRESES
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong SREEIT Trading of fashion
500,000 shares of $1 each apparel and accessories
BRRK (R BRA T Rl M EA£2,100,0007 REMK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Company Limited * $2,100,000 garments
HERK (RI)ARAR" hE &S 40,0007 100% - 100% RERE
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. * $8,400,000 garments
R BERBERA T R &R 100% - 100%  HEEERERES
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC AR#500,0007 Wholesale of fashion
Wholesale Co., Ltd. * Registered capital apparel and accessories
RMB500,000
R EREETERRAF" R AR 100% - 100% ZERMBRH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC AR#2,000,0007 PR & R B &
Limited Company * Registered capital Retail and wholesale
RMB2,000,000 of fashion apparel

and accessories

& These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises

registered under the laws of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. RIBE QT 2R 14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
r&EE
The group
—E-=F —E—=
2013 2012
T T
$000 $'000
FE W Btk & A B FRIE Amount due from an associate 1,000 =
LB EFE Share of net liabilities (28) =
972 -
REBRBE AR <BAEFHEUT ¢ Details of the group’s interest in the associate are as
follows:
BEERLY
Proportion of ownership interest
2RIR
% AMEIR  BRRAEFHE B Y
FEEA R Particulars ERER N i 8 2 Al
Form of Place of of issued Group's #E 58 FREH
AN business incorporation and paid effective Held by the ~ Held by a Principal
Name of associate structure and operation up capital interest  company  subsidiary activity
A Hidden Lab B3l BB 2RER 50% - 50% BERRE
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HET REEH
2 shares Retail of
of $1 each fashion apparel
and accessories
B NT o EERE Summary of financial information on the associate:
BEFE
aE =R Net Uy 23 &8
Assets Liabilities liabilities Revenue Loss
—E-= Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
2013 $7000 $7000 $7000 $7000 $’000
100%7E 2% 100 per cent 2,207 (2,263) (56) 1,410 (56)
REBZEMERZ Group’s effective interest 1,104 (1,132) (28) 705 (28)

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t Q Q



S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. REERTIZRER 15. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
A%E
The group
—E—=F —E-—fF
2013 2012
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
W& & A RIRIE Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 341 14
S & EFE Share of net liabilities (341) (14)
AEBREERTZERFRBNOT : Details of the group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity

are as follows:

BEEZLH
Proportion of ownership interest
BERTR
£S04 AMRLE BRRARE rEE
REREA ES-$E Particulars BERER NG| i 8 2 =

RENFER Form of Place of of issued Group's #E 2] TEEH
Name of jointly business incorporation and paid effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
controlled entity structure and operation up capital interest company  subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK, Limited 7t 1A B AL BB 100R 8K 50% - 50% TERE
Incorporated Hong Kong HET R 85 1% i

100 shares Retail of

of $1 each fashion apparel

and accessories

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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15.

RELFAZHMBERBE-FEEERERS

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

(continued)

Summary financial information on the jointly controlled

entity — group’s effective interest:

—E-=F —E-C—fF

2013 2012

Fr F T

$’000 $7000

FRBEE Non-current assets 31 1

REBEE Current assets 297 9

REBAE Current liabilities (669) (24)

BEFE Net liabilities (341) (14)

A Income 1,910 1,055

B Expenses (2,237) (800)

Fw(E8),ER (Loss)/profit for the year (327) 255

16. Hib&EE 16. OTHER ASSETS

rEE The group

HpEERERS  AHARBREGES  AY

AREE R BT —FREE -

Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits

which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17. #& 17. INVENTORIES
(@ REEEEABRZEEERE: (a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:
rEE
The group

—E-= —E-—_F
2013 2012
Fr T
$/000 $000
AT Raw materials 5,863 7,167
TR Work in progress 1,102 1,192
SRR M Finished goods 52,346 41,140
59,311 49,499
(b) BRBMIAFAEBBRZFESRZD (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

b1 N as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:
AEE
The group

—E-=F —E-——F
2013 2012
Fr T
$'000 $/000
EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 68,876 95,665
BEMERFE Reversal of write down of inventories (1,091) (10,081)
67,785 85,584
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. FEUKBE 2% 2 B fth JE Uy 2% 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE PN
The group The company

—E-=ZfF ZE--F ZB-=F ZEB-_F

2013 2012 2013 2012

Fr FTr Fr Fr

$/000 $7000 $7000 $7000

P S BR 5K Trade debtors 20,490 19,234 - -
JE W Bt 1B 2 B R IR Amount due from a subsidiary - - 44,000 75,000

RE ANRER Deposits, prepayments and

L 1th P& WK other receivables 36,439 35,217 109 109
56,929 54,451 44,109 75,109
7 W AR R R LA W R (B R R B All of the trade and other receivables (including amount
Bl ZFIE) R - FEAREISERRBMAX due from a subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expenses within one year.

FEWHEARREREER  REREETEE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
FRER o and have no fixed terms of repayment.
(@ REDH (@) Ageing analysis
REHEH  RBEZHHFE2BERIERER As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
(Bt ABWERRREMERRA) 28k trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
BoMOT : receivables), based on invoice date, is as follows:
TEHE
The group
—E—-=F —E-—CF
2013 2012
Fr FTr
$’000 $'000
30H A Within 30 days 14,334 14,736
31B£90H Between 31 to 90 days 5,725 3,979
91H=180H Between 91 to 180 days 423 511
181HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days - 8
BB Over 1 year 8 -
20,490 19,234
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. FEURBR 3R I H 1th FE U Fh (48) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@) HBRERD T (&) (@) Ageing analysis (continued)
FEWBR R ZH A ET30290R 2 Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
Hi o REBESEHE 2 #E— SIS AK date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit
F25(a) ° policy are set out in 25(a).
(b) 3 R 1E 2 FE KL B X (b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
S 42 1@ Bl =5 L B #3R B R E 2 FE W BR =X The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
ZEREBONAOT : individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
is as follows:
%
The group
—E-=fF —F—=

2013 2012

Fr Tr

$’000 $'000

I £ 380 2 =R B Neither past due nor impaired 16,859 16,500

BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 2,752 2,079

BH31H£90H 31 to 90 days past due 690 274

BH91HE180H 91 to 180 days past due 181 381

BB Over 1 year 8 —

3,631 2,734

20,490 19,234
I 48 380 HA = R (B 2 B R AR R 05 R AR Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
W MENTHZBERER - to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

EEHEREEZ B RIRR Y E—#t 5 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
AEEERHRFCH ZBUTFER - number of independent customers that have a good track
HACEEZUREAEHREHBDA record with the group. Based on past experience,
WRAHTUTR2NE  REBELR & management believes that no impairment allowance is
EEMGELEXERZSERELRE necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
B - NEE I ER ZE SR A AR a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
e still considered fully recoverable. The group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. BERBITER 19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(@ RERBITFERERE: (@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:
X&EE ADH
The group The company
—E-= —E-—F C—E-=F —E-—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
Tr T Tr T
$'000 $"000 $/000 $"000
BITEN Deposits with banks
-FHAR=E — Within three months to
AREIH maturity when placed 128,711 172,365 - =
-FHBEE=E — More than three months to
BEEIH maturity when placed 2,703 2,703 - -
ROTEFRES Cash at bank and in hand 96,548 92,840 878 7,651
REEEBRZ Cash and bank deposits
BERBIER in the balance sheets 227,962 267,908 878 7,651

W FHMAEL=MEA  Less: Deposits with bank with
BEHZRT more than three months
2 to maturity when placed (2,703) (2,703)

REEHEMERZ  Cash and cash equivalents
BeRBREEEN in the consolidated
cash flow statement 225,259 265,205
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. RERBITER(H)

19. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

b) BRBAGHNREKEEBMEEZRELZ (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
HER: generated from operations:
—E—=F —E-—F
2013 2012
= T Fr
Note $/000 $000
R B A% R Profit before taxation 26,751 119,006
BT HIELAE : Adjustments for:
REME2fLHE Valuation gains on investment
s &= properties (2,360) (3,790)
e Depreciation 5(c) 25,638 23,930
EEEERERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 5(c) 5,380 3,636
L& AR Finance costs 5(a) 3 1
FME WA Interest income 4 (3,476) (3,615)
HEBREEEZ Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
BB (KE) F8 fixed assets 4 50 (320)
FEiLEE DR 2EE Share of loss of an associate 28 -
BLEEARZ Share of loss/(profit) of a jointly
BB Oafl) controlled entity 327 (255)
HEY %z & Gain on disposal of property - (65,516)
X EE Foreign exchange loss 311 168
EEELRE: Changes in working capital:
Hth&E (Em) (Increase)/decrease in other assets (1,206) 1,105
D
FE@Em SR (Increase)/decrease in inventories (9,800) 15,034
FE W Bk & 0 R FRIR Increase in amount due from
20 an associate (1,000) -
FEW & & D BIFRIE (Increase)/decrease in amount due
(Bm) WP from a jointly controlled entity (327) 255
FEWRRR R H i fE Increase in trade and other receivables (2,574) (4,441)
R A2
FEAS BRI H At FE Decrease in trade and other payables
NRBD (4,063) (3,134)
REXBEMEEZRE  Cash generated from operations 33,682 82,064
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. ENERAKHMENSR 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
rEE PN
The group The company
—E—-= —E-—-F ZZE-—= —E-—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
Fr T Fr T
$7000 $000 $/000 $000
P BRFX Trade payables 2,941 4,138 - =
Hitt A FRIEAR Other creditors and accrued
&R charges 47,385 50,184 1,938 2,253
50,326 54,322 1,938 2,253
M ERENMRAREMENSZIEER —FR All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
BE - settled within one year.
REER RREAHTE2EFRER (B As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade
AR R EA B RA) ZERR T creditors (which are included in trade and other payables),

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

r&EE

The group
—E-=F —E-—F
2013 2012
Fr T
$’000 $'000
30B A Within 30 days 2,474 3,353
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 357 531
#iB9I0H Over 90 days 110 254
2,941 4,138
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. EERKEFR

(a)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

AEBEREEBGAFIE DB EURA)
HREB(EBRA) EBREBERERZ
EEHTRHMEABEHE ((BESS
2l  BELHIAAHBUSIAEE
ZRAEMFBINGE - RIFRFESFTE
EEREESEREEBBEARAZ5%M
ZiTEER BEEABBERALRA
25,0007t (= —=F XA ZA£20,000
7o) c BESTTEZHADAEERS -

TEZHBLARCSEAM S BFEE
ZREMKEE - KEMBLREARDE
BEFBEFL2E THEELRAZTE
R HRTDENEHRE -

REBEEXB - HWBARAZEECE
BE2HEMABE T RASKAEEZR
EHAETE - LB ARARSEREM
et B2 BERAF SR Z6%MHER
FRHRERRGES TRIRA ZMEA

RAERSEA -

(a)

. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to
June 2012). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest

immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act of
Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of the participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, the contribution deposited into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance of

Taiwan.




21. BERKER (&)

(d) FAETHNRE B L Rz & T 2 82 /i #7 IK
BFAS P RABEEHE (THROE
2]) MELARAREIZTEKHEFM=
ETEHAKEAPRABEHR  REPR
DEERG ERREAIHEERAR
WmERA - WEAREARRE  HEER
KXNHERARR2BRALBEE-FINE
R -

BREmEN  AEBYBEEMEARESRE
KBANRZEMEREE -

REARFEZHARELFTHARS

22. URAFAARZBRABERKIS
AR =ZBEZ-_F-A-THAKMKN—EE
MRFEST &I ([R5 8]) » BARAR AR EBRE
FTHEEZZ2HE FRAHSHAKEEELEE
Bz BRI E - ZETEIB M A BB AN
YR+ ERER -BE-E——-F=A=1+—
HLIESEE 58000007 BREDETE RN
“ER-——H=ZA=+—H WEHERITEZE
RE - BE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HLFE"
b AR 45 0B R FE 5T B R AT S AR R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(d) Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. This
subsidiary and its employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-

retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years from the date of its adoption. During the year ended
31 March 2012, 5,800,000 share options were exercised
and there was no outstanding share option as at 31 March
2012. No share options were granted under the share

option scheme during the year ended 31 March 2013.



Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. HEEEEBRIIRZFIEH 23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(@ FEEEEBXRATZAPBEEE: (@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
represents:
r&EHE
The group
—E—-=F —E-—_F
2013 2012
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
FEEEBAEH Provision for Hong Kong Profits
BB Tax for the year 3,682 9,065
ENEHFEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (108) (1,610)
3,574 7,455
BBIRIBIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 1,445 3,592
5,019 11,047
&k : Representing:
A EBIIE Tax recoverable (79) (1,065)
FE A3 B 18 Tax payable 5,098 12,112
5,019 11,047

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. BEEEEBRIIRZFAEMH (&) 23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
by ERIBELFEHEERER: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
AEE The group
RAFEEGREEEEBRBRZEL The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
FEBias  (E8) 2dRHoREH recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
2T : movements during the year are as follows:
HESREE
RELHE
Depreciation REERZ 3 &)
inexcessof EffM%¥ B&NZE FEEA HMEREH
the related  Revaluation Future  Unrealised Write
depreciation of  benefits of  profitson  down of ag
allowances  properties  tax losses inventories inventories Total
r r r r Fr r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
R=E-—-f£MmA—-H At 1 April 2011 (2,080) 44,300 (270) (1,647) (3,625) 36,678
BEEPGIA) /0B (Credited)/charged to
profit or loss (814) - 270 1M1 (2,394) (2,827)
kMR Charged to reserves - 7,419 - - - 7,419
RZE-ZE=F=1+-H At 31 March 2012 (2,894) 51,719 - (1,536) (6,019) 41,270
R=ZZE-—£MmA—H At 1 April 2012 (2,894) 51,719 - (1,536) (6,019) 41,270
BREERGIA) /K (Credited)/charged to
profit or loss (716) - - (758) 2,404 930
RERMNR Charged to reserves - 9,850 - - - 9,850
R-E-=#=Z8=1—H At 31 March 2013 (3,610) 61,569 - (2,294) (3,615) 52,050
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. GREERBRATRZHAER (H) 23.

(b) EERIBELEFSHEERKE  (H)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)
rEE
The group
—E-= —E-—_F
2013 2012
Fr T
$7000 $'000
REEERERBRZEL Net deferred tax asset recognised
RSB EREFE in the balance sheet (7,166) (8,972)
REEEREREBRZIEL Net deferred tax liability recognised
FEHAaETE in the balance sheet 59,216 50,242
52,050 41,270

(0 AERELEFESHEE :
REHERHWEIOZEHBE  AEERK

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in

AL EFRTHEREERBRIEL note 1(o), the group and the company have not
FREBERE : recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the
following temporary differences:
~EE NN
The group The company
—E-=F B8 —ZEBE-=% —ZE-—_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
Fr Fr T Fr
$/000 $000 $/000 $7000
BEER Tax losses 86,029 89,880 6,546 4,777
WEZMWMEB  Depreciation in excess of
TERBE the related depreciation
allowances 38 149 - -
86,067 90,029 6,546 4,777

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. REEEEBRATZFAEBH (&) 23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

() RERELEFEHREE : (&) (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (continued)
AEARBEERTEHEEFERFER Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
ZERZRFRERZKIE40,033,0007T $40,033,000 (2012: $33,103,000) which can be

—Z—_"%1:33,103,0007t) ° RIBEBEHF carried forward up to five years from the year in which
BIEHRBI » 37%845,996,000T (ZF—= the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
F 1 56,777,0007T) 3 & 2 R HR o $45,996,000 (2012: $56,777,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

24. BX - REREE 24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@ EEBH2LH (@) Movements in components of equity
REBGEEESBORFARFLE 2 The reconciliation between the opening and closing
HEFNGERBEZ IR - AR AEES balances of each component of the group’s
HORFIRFEB2SBFBEHART consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
X e statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes

in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below.
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(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, BEXR - BERKRE ()
(a) HEZHHR2EH (EF)

24.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@) Movements in components of equity (continued)

ENC The company
Rx  RoEE HARR  RERN ARRER
Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
r r r r Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-B--EMA-AzEH Balance at 1 April 2011 2,822 58,715 61,572 159,665 282,774
SB--F/-ZFEZEREH:  Changes in equity in 2011/12:
ER2HNGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = = 81,200 81,200
REBRESBRTZIRG Shares issued under share
(Hrat24(c) option scheme (note 24(c)) 58 6,612 = = 6,670
EECREZRE (WiE24b)i))  Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
(note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (36,677) (36,677)
REECERZRE (W24b)i))  Dividend declared in respect
of the current year
(note 24(b)(i)) - - - (31,034) (31,034)
RZZF-Z#=A=t-HZKH Balance at 31 March 2012 2,880 65,327 61,572 173,154 302,933
R=B-Z#MA-RZ&R Balance at 1 April 2012 2,880 65,327 61,572 173,154 302,933
ZE-ZH/-ZEZBE2E:  Changes in equity in 2012/13:
ER2AREAR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 42,230 42,230
EECHREZRE (Wz224)i)  Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
(note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (34,552) (34,552)
REEEEKZRE (Hi24(b)i)  Dividend declared in respect
of the current year
(note 24(b)(i)) - - - (8,637) (8,637)
RZB-=H=A=t-Hz&H Balance at 31 March 2013 2,880 65,327 61,572 172,195 301,974

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. BA BERRL () 24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
b)) BE (b) Dividends
(i) XL GEZRRZFIEERE (i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E-=F —E-——F
2013 2012
T T
$/000 $000
EERERIKAFEHRE  Interim dividend declared and
BREBER3W paid of 3 cents per ordinary share
(Z2—=F: 8K (2012: 5 cents per ordinary share)
EER5) 8,637 14,107
EERRKAHRRE  Special dividend declared and paid of Nil
BREBRE (2012: 6 cents per ordinary share)
(ZF2-=F:8K)
3B B ofil) - 16,927
NEZRBREZEDIRARE  Final dividend proposed after
BREEREBER7 L the balance sheet date of 7 cents per
(Z2—Z=F 8K ordinary share (2012: 12 cents
EEAR1240) per ordinary share) 20,155 34,552
28,792 65,586
REEBEEZDIRZRPREL The final dividend proposed after the balance
AEZEHRIAREE - sheet date has not been recognised as a liability

at the balance sheet date.

(i) FENAE R A EamRR 2 E— BB F (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
ERE IR FEE LRI company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

—E-=F —E-—F
2013 2012
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
BRE—BEBEE &M Final dividend in respect of the previous
NEE S &AERIKA financial year, approved and paid
REIIR B & RR124 during the year, of 12 cents per share
(=ZB—=%F: (2012: 13 cents per share)
FR134W) 34,552 36,677
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, BEXR - BERKRE ()
(c) B
(i) ZEERBBETRE

24.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital

—E-=f —E-CF
2013 2012
bgis €G] ko &8
Number Number
of shares 8 of shares &8
TR Tr TR Tr
000 $/000 000 $'000
EE Authorised:
SREME0ITZEER  Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
REERHR At beginning of the year 287,930 2,880 282,130 2,822
REBRETBRTZ Shares issued under share
Rt (Hrit22) option scheme (note 22) - - 5,800 58
REER Atend of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880

EBEREEAERERTREIRZ
BRE BEARAEELERITE
—EREE -FAEEBRREARQT
ZRBEEZRRSHES -

(i) RIFBRESZ BT ZREG
RZE—Z=—FE=A=+tH UK
f86,670,0007T 17 £ 5 I # R I8
5,800,000 A A B 2 B » HP
58,0007 5T A PR 7S K 88%86,612,000
T AR BERF o

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

(ii)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the company’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 27 March 2012, options were exercised to
subscribe for 5,800,000 ordinary shares in the
company at a consideration of $6,670,000, of
which $58,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of $6,612,000 was credited to the

share premium account.




24, BEXR - BERKRE ()
FEEERE®N

(d)

(i)

(ir)

(iii)

R 17 E

REBERE QAL ROEER
ARRKFARATZRE » HEBRER
ROKKREBHE AATNENE
BEOREEEEREXKBRESD
EEZER - ROGEFATUET
BRAFRD 2 HNEEDIK

E 1
Htt@BER-_ZEZET_F-—8
TTHERAENZAEEEAMBE
ZHBLARZRAEEERLES
REZARFACBTRAZHEEZ
EH e

Ei#EESHAAERRESTBES
EBRVBRREECERLEZMH - =
EENE T RETBRER

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1(r).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. BEX - RERRE (F)
(d) FHEEEREW(E)
(iv) ZEBBLIE
RENGTBECEERAZ2PEE
B AQFZFEKBARERYL
MEEZERGBAE 2R ARER
SRBIXRBREBEFAES - BHEFR
Y REBESZELARFERBE
B (RPEERTE) 210%8E#
AREBEEESR HEZES 4R
HEREFTMERZ50%H Lk o 1t
BESTAFAEEEREBRAK
REEARAZE HEHBARZES
EUMBEREBREEFEBER
IHFRENES R-_TZTRE
TA-t+tHBTAAE B=F
ZRF-A—HE BEEETH
BEEEF ALY EEE TER
RENESEHER -

() LTHREZYEGHE
FEBERYL T REEY S
B UKREREMBTEERALHBR
BEY TR SR (M)
B o

i) B#HEER
ENBRRERRBER=-ZZE_F—
B tHEB4ERzEBEAMKE
ZHBARERZEHEREFHEE
AABBUERREZERITRS
ZHBEZEZR BHRBRHBIABRHE
AR B EERE ©

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses or to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and
no transfer to staff general fund has been made

since.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.




24, BEXR - BERKRE ()

(e)

()

Al it 2 k% 1

R-Z—=F=A=+—8 " 9KFX
AR R MR 2 HE 4258 %299,094,000
JT(ZZ— =% :300,053,00075) ° A%
EH%E EBEZHIRAERESRKR7L
(ZZ2—Z=—F:8R121L) r &H B
20,155,0007t (=& — =4 : 34,552,000
70) (BEE24(b) - HIBREFSBAHLE
EBHzBE-

EXEH
FEBEEEACERERNRELSE
ErEMEBERBISESEREELE  #Mm
EREREBKERYECERRREE
BERUAGERFESHE  BESRRA
EOHERSHMRESE ATRAE -

FEEEBRYEREMMNEELELRRE
B UESRE SRREBERBEEE
RETROEARKA 2 BEIEFE > EE
BEBRENBECHERERBELARE -

HRASEREBANNBESELERD
B ARERFRABREBIIFEERM
A& o

R-Z—=FH8  rEEFRE=-FT—=
F2R BERARKNEBUEZTBE
SKFEMRBDESHE - BEFRAR
BEKE  AEEAFZRMSFREZR
B8 BOHRA  aRRBREESD
HEEENEMBEAKF -

ARBAREMBARDBRAZIINER 2
BARBRERS o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e)

®

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $299,094,000 (2012: $300,053,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 7 cents per share (2012: 12 cents per
share), amounting to $20,155,000 (2012:
$34,552,000) (note 24(b)). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not financed by
external borrowings during the current year.

During 2013, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2012,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase
the cash level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 EREREERQAE
FE RBES - FIXRERARDEAEE
X EFEBBRPEL - ARBEAAEZ
ZERBRAEBEEEZSAMARA BB
EEREMNELNR T -

@@ fFERR
AEBCEERRTEHERERERRRE
LW HREL - EERECHERRZEE
HBE UHZEEERRSEERE-

REWRRREMERRTES  $EHE
REBEETSHEZEECREFETEE
G o WEFT A ERRE S BEREIER
TR - ARBRIRNEESD - Wt
RENEFEENRFERRSEZEERR
KEMENSERE - ZSRKFRBEHE
BRES A #8302 90 AEE - RABMEI K
EERECEBRABEBTEREERERS
BHEAURTE-—SEE FAEBEHE
R %5 18 JE U BR 7k % EL Ath 8 WLk 2 AT Uk =]
S8 UBRRITITKRESEEEEHZ
WAE S °

ROTFR-—REAGETRRENHFH
BT At BEEEYAERREHFH
TREBITREZEE

REER  AEBZBRABEEARAKRE
3% A 2 Bk FE Uk BR TR R H i FE Uk R 42 B
7% (ZZF—ZF 1 6%) k28% (=&
— 26 1 24%) °

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The
group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, 7% (2012: 6%) and 28%
(2012: 24%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the group’s largest debtor and the five

largest debtors respectively.




25 EREREERQAEE

(@)

(b)

FERR(#E)
BAFERBEEBEEEBRAZS
BMEEZREEDR - AEE W EREHRE
AEAEER AR RAEAHEERBRD
PR -

BEAKEFEYHERIRRR MR
WHEIBzFERBZE-—PEBRE
BRKIEE18 ©

REE T E
FEECHRREREERDESEER
LREGREARSHE  UEFHER
B eRBEEER -

TREREAEERAD AR E B EST
EEMBEZRT T NEERER - WUART
HARTHRRESR (BERTHERTE
ZHAEXH  SMBERER - REER
EACERNECREXH) RAEHEE
AAFAHEBY 2 REERABHEIN
B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group or

the company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s and
the company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flow (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the

group and the company can be required to pay:

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t .I 2 .|



S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. SREREERAAE(EZ 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(b)y RBHESEKE F) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The group
—E-=k —E-C&
2013 2012
ARRFTRRER L ARRTRRAER

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow cash outflow
—FRE £z —ERF% £ERZ
BERA REE EEEH REE
) Balance ) Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or BE  carrying  1yearor BE  canying
on demand Total amount  on demand Total amount
i i T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ERERREMES Trade and other payables 50,326 50,326 50,326 54,322 54,322 54,322

N
The company
—E-Zf§ “E-—F%
2013 2012
HEES kb TARARRER
Contractual Contractual

undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow cash outflow
“Eqg LRy  —EAE 4gny
BEEN REE EERH REE
B 51 Balance 5 Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or B%  carying  1yearor BE  cnying
on demand Total amount  on demand Total amount

T T r T T T
$000 $000 $'000 §/000 §/000 §/000

ERHESREMEMTK  Trade and other payables 1,938 1,938 1,938 2,253 2,253 2,253

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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(0 FERERK
REBZANZABREIEREFESHRE
Eo

(i) FIEZE
TRAAEENREERTEERE

25.
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(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

interest-bearing financial assets.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile

EZRRER of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets at
the balance sheet date:
i
The group
—E-Z=f§ —E-CEF
2013 2012
BERA=E ERAIE
Effective Fr Effective Fr
interest rate $000 interest rate $'000
BEAZEREE " Fixed rate financial assets:
-RITER — Deposits with banks 2.08% 131,414 2.37% 175,068

(i) BREZHT
R=ZZE—=F=A=+—H8 " &5t
MEZEBEH TH-—B®TF &
Htt 2 HEERETE2BR
T AEBZBRBEBENRARE R
R &2 B, H A #91,314,0007T
(ZZ—=% :1,751,0007) &
1,314,000 (=& — = & :
1,751,0007C) °

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
$1,314,000 (2012: $1,751,000) and $1,314,000
(2012: $1,751,000) respectively.
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25 EREREERQAEE

(© FEmB (F)
i) BE S B ()

EBURE S A B BB
SRR R R W A 2 BB
B HBRENFRRAESHRE
HRDERE O AREHHE
AEBFBELNEE A EAEE
HHAAEANERR2EMIA -
U A RN H B A2
BAEKFTETAFEEZRST
RIEER o B B 2 B R
REERFZHEENAEHAE
PHHEEZFEZHRMA 2
ER ST RO U=
—CETEA-REES

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the group which expose the group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non derivative
instruments held by the group at the balance
sheet date, the impact on the group’s profit after

tax and retained profits is estimated as an

annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2012.

(d) BE¥ER
FEESRcERNAREIERBERS
EEREBEE  FAXREMFEUNE
(R ZRXEMELIFEEER 2HEE
W)STEZBRIE  BARERRESE
BRMEL - S| MM EABZERETERX
T BT RS o

(d) Currency risk
The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros and

Sterling pounds.
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(d)

E¥ER (A

MUBTERIEER 2 EEERMS
BRE TERURBUNETRBIN  IEHEE
RBEHLUB TRETFHE - HRBTE
X ERERBEAFERZER
SEMERERRAR - BB IT R EHFTT
BE2XEZME HRZAEXRZELTE
K EBBARFARZEERABRTK -

RUARBERDEER 2 KEEEM
5 BRANBRGEZEEEREERE
TREN HtbR G KREBH AR
BHeBANBRTEZEEAEREERR
ZMsE  EEERRMAEZEYRRT
* o

AEEASEEARREERRERS
=540
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
except for certain purchases from Europe. Given that
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such
United States dollars denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros and Sterling
pounds, since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 EREREERQAEE

d) BE¥ERE)

(i) FrEREZEERE
TRAAEENEE A I I LA
ERDRENTTENCEREEN
BEMEAZZIERBELFAD
fre TRIAEBEEEAEHHE R

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

()

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entity to which they

AMEHER (REREBEHAREH
BRRMNFREN—ED) MELED
Bk TRNSEDRFLERZE
RAMBEREZI 2R -EER
BERBEIIMBRRAZHBREASE
SENEIEEMELENEZRL T

relate. The exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the year

BREER - end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the group’s presentation
currency are excluded.

AEE
The group
ARz NERR
Exposure to foreign currencies
(RB®FIR)

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012
B RE B R

Sterling Sterling

Euros pounds Euros pounds
Tr Fr T T
$000 $000 $000 $000

HEthEE Other assets - 1,176 = =

B 1 B 0 I L PR MR R Trade and other receivables - 1,176 = =

EARARREMEMR Trade and other payables (922) - (1,836)  (1,109)

ERAEEREEMELLZ Net exposure arising from

Bk FE recognised assets and
liabilities (922) 2,352 (1,836) (1,109)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. SREREERAARE (& 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
d) EWmEE(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) BEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRERMMEEREEERAEK The following table indicates the instantaneous
Rz EERREBZBHAE change in the group’s profits after tax and
B 2 BBt 12 8 B I 4R B & Al 2 B B retained profits that would arise if foreign
FE ERIHBABSBHELERTT exchange rates to which the group entities have
Bopbms ERRBIRET significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
ZENBHEERAFFIZETALE changed at that date, assuming all other risk
WEW EESEHMTE - variables remained constant. In this respect, it is

assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar

against other currencies.

—E-=f —E-ZF

2013 2012
Ex REAEN REEA Ex BREGER  REE7
tr/ 0 R/ B/ Lt/ )/ (BD)/
(F3) 2 B (T5) )| 2in
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/  (decrease) (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/

in foreign increase increase in foreign increase  increase in

exchange inprofits inretained  exchange in profits retained

rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits

i i r T

$'000 $'000 $'000 $000

B Euros 10% (77) (77) 10% (153) (153)
(10)% 77 77 (10)% 153 153

S Sterling pounds 10% 196 196 10% (93) (93)
(10)% (196) (196) (10)% 93 93
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 EREREERQAEE

d) BE¥ERE)

(i) BBREEZ W (E)
ERFEVN 2O MEREFAEER
BEREER D E B ENES
VIEREFEAZERGBRBBIT 2
Baoe -

e

BRESMEBRBIIBER2EH
EAREFTEREEMBFRLER
FEAGEAEERGIERKR S
MTE BFESEBULEEETR
ER 2R EFENNERNRE
W BRIE o b5 i N EIEEE B I
MEBAR 2 BERREEREAEE
CEVNEERMES CEZHE - ZED
MU= ——F 2 E—EAEEIT o

(e) ARE
FESRMIAYREAR_Z—=4K
—E-—_F=ZA=+t-HZAREBETE
BEREZEEZHENE - B AR 28R
AEEF  REREETERS - BERZ
SR PEHREZAABELESE -
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance

sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to currency risk at
the balance sheet date, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the group which
are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into
the group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2012.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2013 and 2012. Balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment
terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to

disclose their fair values.




26. HEiIE
(@ RZZBE—=F=ZA=+—HIEERHK
WMRAELBEZHARBITEREAENT :

26.

Sk 25t o Y ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2013
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

rEH
The group
—E-=F —E—=

2013 2012
Fr T
$'000 $000
EHEERETH Authorised but not contracted for 3,000 =
2F 4 Contracted for 447 2,321

(b) RZB-—=F=ZA=t+—H ' RETTHE
BRELHEERREN2RERENRK

(b) At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

MEEIT payable as follows:
&M

The group
—E-—= —E-——fF
2013 2012
F5 Fi
$7000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 115,385 112,037
—FREIFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 134,512 141,945
BBRF Over 5 years 762 2,446
250,659 256,428

FEEREEHEHERAE TN - ZS5H
HN—ROLSRP—ZRF > AATRLWE
ENEEMAGRREN - HENREER
REFHAE  URRHSHEE -

BREXKEHEHENTI  AEEE
REXFHRETHENERL —EBD
EEERBE B2 RIE -

Annual Report 2013 4 & 4£ 3t

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to
reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of turnover for certain
leased properties.

129
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. REERE
(@) RZE—Z=%5=B=+—H ' ' XRPAHRE
FrENBLARAIZRITHEREAAE

R o

FitER TR E 8 550,690,0007T (= F
— =% :50,690,0007t) R=ZE—=F
=ZA=+—H ' E®#%5,249,000T (=
ZT— 4 :5,293,000) EEA -

by BE=ZZ-—=F=A=+—HBLFEH
B ARG —BHERD - RE2EKH
BARRBERRERS 2 EBAEERK
BHRZMUEEEHE—RE -R-_FT—=
F=A=t+—HB FHEEARZER (=
— Z % :955,0007T) °

RRBUEEBEHZERR - ZERXZL
FRDARAUERER - AR T TRERE
(BRETTERDE3SR/EM LA - #F
Rit2 - MBERSA I ELIUARE
HEZERS - At - AEERILEIIE
TREBERNAAENE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2013, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
banking facilities were secured by corporate

guarantees provided by the company.

The above banking facilities, amounting to
$50,690,000 (2012: $50,690,000) were utilised to the
extent of $5,249,000 (2012: $5,293,000) at 31 March
2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the company
has also issued a single guarantee to a supplier against
obligations or sums payable for goods and services
supplied to a wholly owned subsidiary. At 31 March
2013, such obligations amounted to $Nil (2012:
$955,000).

These guarantees were issued by the company at nil
consideration. The transactions were not at arm’s
length, and it is not possible to measure reliably the
fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement: Financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly the guarantees have not been accounted

for as financial liabilities and measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. EREBALTRE 28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RSO BRRAMMAMEE2R S REH In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
O REBFTLTHERBEBRALZRS ! elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@ EBEEBARZIXS (@) Transactions with related companies
—E—-=F —E-—F
2013 2012
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
RENMEZHETBWA Rental income from an investment
property 473 473
ExmEEcEHERAX Rental expense for director’s quarters 996 996
AR5 & WA Service fee income 918 803
HEMATGI L Z2HES WA - HEHEXR Rental income, rental expenses and service fee income
RSB WA DR N FHERE ZHRR with related companies were at terms mutually agreed
BEE ° by both parties.
b) EEEEBEAEME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TETEAEME (BEMEFARES Remuneration for key management personnel,
NFRARBITESZ2HBA) T ¢ including amounts paid to the company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

—E-—= —E-——fF

2013 2012

Fr T

$/000 $000

EHESREF Short-term employee benefits 13,738 13,559
BBRESREA Post-employment benefits 73 60
13,811 13,619
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29.

30.

BEERBERERA 29. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
R-ZEBE—=H=A=+—H BEE=IHLEE At 31 March 2013, the directors consider the immediate
ZEES AR RBERLRERTS HSuper Result parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Consultants Limited » —RREBHER RIS Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
SR AN 2 A F] o 72 B3 AR B AT 440 B 3% the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
g e financial statements available for public use.
BE-_E-=-—E=-fA=1+-ALEECHE 30. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
HELREY T FREARRES AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
G4 - EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
BEEZEUBBRERTEEY BESTMAE Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
EEM SIS RZEMIZAER - ZZEBTR HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
HIBEARBE_ZT-—=F=A=1+—-ALF standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
EMREN  BNAREZZMBERREMN - & March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these
ZRFEUT 2 BRI RAIBER A EERNEEA financial statements. These include the following which
B may be relevant to the group:
RT5 B
H2EEABLZ
B HBEX
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
(BBEHERDE R/ HBHREX 25 - At 2E K ER 225 2ETA “E-ZFftHA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
(BBUBREENFE 10K/ FLUBHEE] —E-=%—-A—H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
(BRBMBREZER BN/ BELH] —E-=Z¥—-A—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
(BERMBREEAFE 12/ B LA 2B mHE] —E-=%-HF—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
(BEBMBREERDF 135/ L 2ETE] —E-=Z%—-A—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30 BE=—ZE—=F=A=+—HLEEEHE 30. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
B RERZIER] - FPEARREZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
AIREE () EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

(continued)
RT3 BEH
R EERZ
BT HBENR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BERETEANE 27/ BV HBHE —E-=f-F—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
(BEEHER) R 28N HELAREELAZRE ] —E-=%-A—H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
(BEEER)F195 (KRB ESEFA —E-=f-HF—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
(BERMBREEAE7R/2HTE HE -zl EEREHMERE 2R —E-=%-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2013
(BEBHBEHREEL) —EENFZ-_F——FHYPZ FENE —E-=%-A—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
(ERETTEANEN N/ 2MIT A 25 -HELHEERELHERE | 2GR —E-WF-F—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. BE=—ZBE—=F=HA=1+—HLFECHE 30. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
RS RERZIBT » FEEARRES AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
AR E (& EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

(continued)
RT5 A
RZERRZ
BT HBENR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRUBRRELEINE IR/ 2T A/ —E-HE-—-HA—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

(BERUBRELENFE IR/ 2HT A /R(EBMERELER)
BIREMI R KE—BHENA B REERZE]ZIERTAR —E-H%—HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and

HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

— Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures 1 January 2015
AEER EFEERZEET AN ERERS The group is in the process of making an assessment of
B8 HRERREEEZSE KT what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
HAREHAEBE 2 EEXER BN IER the period of initial application but is not yet in a position
BAREE- to state whether these amendments and new standards

would have a significant impact on the group’s result of

operations and financial positions.
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Group Financial Summary

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2013 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.

S5 Results
HEZ=-HA=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
ZE-=F ZE--F ZE2——8 ZZT-FF —ZFThEF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Fr T Fr T T
$'000 $000 $/000 $000 $/000
(E51)
(Restated)
EEE Turnover 418,895 455,718 486,088 439,599 423,088
RERA Profit from operations 24,749 49,446 87,648 58,006 27,902
& A Finance costs (3) (1) 1 3) (141)
EihEEDTER Share of loss of an associate (28) - - - -
i = N d Share of (loss)/profit of a
(B5#8) &7 jointly controlled entity (327) 255 (179) (90) -
THREZEYREEME  Net valuation gains/(losses)
ZEERE (BR) on land and buildings
B and investment properties 2,360 3,790 5,000 5,349 (381)
HEME 2 Wz Gain on disposal of
a property - 65,516 _ _ _
BR B A1V Fl Profit before taxation 26,751 119,006 92,468 63,262 27,380
g%t Income tax (6,722)  (11,856) (13,910) (8,867) (7,323)
FEREF Profit for the year 20,029 107,150 78,558 54,395 20,057
BRER Earnings per share
E- PN Basic $0.07 7T $0.387C $0.287C $0.197T $0.07 7T
g Diluted $0.07 T $0.387C $0.287T $0.197T $0.077T
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Group Financial Summary

(LA 3 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and liabilities
=B=+—H
As at 31 March
“g¥-=fF ZB--f B ZZ-BF -TEINF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Fr T T T T
$'000 $000 $/000 $000 $/000
(E75)
(Restated)
BEEE Fixed assets 449,365 402,467 368,726 267,972 214,856
Hith&EE Other assets 15,145 12,915 50,096 13,255 14,226
EEFRBHEE Deferred tax assets 7,166 8,972 6,793 5,258 3,002
REBEEZRE Net current assets 288,857 306,489 216,495 215,629 167,265
BEERAE Total assets less current
BfE4E liabilities 760,533 730,843 642,110 502,114 399,349
*RBEE Non-current liabilities (59,216)  (50,242) (43,471) (24,898) (15,395)

701,317 680,601 598,639 477,216 383,954

(&N Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,822 2,821 2,821

3] Reserves 698,437 677,721 595,817 474,395 381,133

701,317 680,601 598,639 477,216 383,954

Mzt . BAREBRRMACE B SR E1295 Fr5E# | Note: In order to opt for early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12,
T N —EAREEERHEEIHE Income taxes, in 2011 the group changed its accounting policy
RS IR( BB SR E40% [ R EY 2 | UL for recognising deferred tax on investment properties carried at
ARBEANECREYESEER B HE—-2 fair values under HKAS 40, Investment properties. Figures for the
—EE- A=+ -—BPUHEECHELEELE year ended 31 March 2010 have been adjusted accordingly.
ERAX . 2 ABE-_EThE=A=+—81I1 Figures for the year ended 31 March 2009 and prior years have
EERBEEESHE BREFRSREZEE not been restated as it would involve delay and expenses out of
FESHBEBRE R WS AES - proportion to the benefits of shareholders.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% #¥% B B 4 M A W 4 #
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